
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Monday, November 06, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

 Council Chambers - City Hall, 3rd Floor 
1717 E. Park Street, Two Rivers, WI 54241 

 

 

AGENDA 

NOTICE: Arrangements for Addressing the City Council by Telephone, During Public Hearings or 
Input from the Public can be made by Contacting the City Manager's Office at 920-793-5532 or 
City Clerk's Office at 920-793-5526 by 4:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 
Councilmembers: Jeff Dahlke, Bill LeClair, Darla LeClair, Tracey Koach, Tim Petri, Bonnie 
Shimulunas, Scott Stechmesser, Adam Wachowski 

4. CONSIDERATION OF ANY COUNCIL MEMBER REQUESTS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS 
MEETING FROM A REMOTE LOCATION 

5. INPUT FROM THE PUBLIC 

6. COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
Letters and other communications from citizens 

7. COUNCIL REPORTS FROM BOARDS/COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES 

8. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

A. Invited Guests 
1. VFW Post Representative Pamela Stephens, to Annource Veterans Day Programs 
2. New Employees: 
    a. Rhonda Deehr, Police Secretary/Evidence Clerk 
    b. Laura Hooper, Recreation Clerk 
    c. AJ Lorrigan, Part-Time Community House Receptionist 

B. Bryan Grunewald from Clifton Larson Allen LLP, Presentation of the 2022 Audited Financial 
Statements 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to receive and place on file 

C. Overview of Proposed 2024 City Budget 

D. Status Update/Reports 
1. Staffing Updates 
2. Leaf Collection Continues Through November 
3. Participation in 2023 Spring Tree Grant Program 
4. Upcoming Events 
    a. Two Rivers Utilities Annual Food Drive, November 6-10, Donate Food Items and Recieve  
        Lights 

1



    b. Washington House is Extending Its Season, the Museum and Visitor Center is Open  
        Noon-5:00 PM, Fridays-Sundays Through December 16 
    c. Creepy Crawly Typey Letterpress Workshop, November 17-18, Hamilton Wood Type &  
        Printing Museum, Registration Required 
    d. Community Thanksgiving Meal, Thursday, November 23, 11:30 AM-2:30 PM, Senior  
        Center 
    e. Main Street Shop Hometown Downtown Two Rivers, Saturday, November 25 
    f.  Hometown Christmas Parade, Saturday, November 25, 5:30 PM, Downtown 
    g. Cool City Christmas, Saturday, December 16, Noon -6:00 PM 
5. Other 

E. Legislative/IntergovernmentalUpdate 
1. Resolution Opposing Senate Bill 455, Which Would Subject Local Storm Water Utilities to 
Regulations by the State Public Service Commission 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to read and adopt the resolution 

9. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Presentation of Minutes 
1. City Council, October 16, 2023 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to waive reading and adopt the minutes 

B. Minutes of Meetings 
1. Personnel & Finance, October 12, 19, 26 and November 2, 2023 
2. Environmental Advisory Board, October 17, 2023 
3. Joint Meeting Explore Two Rivers with Room Tax Commission, October 24, 2023 
4. Business Improvement District Board, Ocotober 26, 2023 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to receive and file 

C. Summary of Verified Bills for the Month of October for $1,825,702.83 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to receive and file 

D. Set Public Hearing on Proposed 2023 City Budget 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to set Public Hearing for November 27, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION FOR CONSENT AGENDA  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda with the various actions recommended 

10. CITY COUNCIL - FORMAL ITEMS 

A. Amending Ordinance 9-8-8 Separation of Adult Entertainment Businesses 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to waive reading and adopt the ordinance 

B. Ordinance Amending Section 9-2-5 of the Municipal Code, Entitled "Loud and Unnecessary 
Noises"  
Recommended Action: 
Motion to waive reading and adopt the ordinance 

C. Ordinance Amending Section 6-1-19 of the Municipal Code, entitles "Beer Gardens 
Regulated," to Modify Hours When Amplified Music or Sound is Permitted, to Make Consistent 

2



With Provisions of Noise Ordinance (Section 9-2-5) 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to waive reading and adopt the ordinance 

D. Ordinance Amending Section 6-10-5 of the Municipal Code, Entitled Sidewalk Cafe Permits 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to waive reading and adopt the ordinance 

E. Ordinance for Direct Annexation Request for Property Located at 2423 County Road 0, Town 
of Two Rivers, submitted by Edward Zimmeth (owner) 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to waive reading and adopt the ordinance 

F. Request for R-1 Zoning for Direct Annexation Property Located at 2423 County Road 0, Town 
of Two Rivers, Submitted by Edward Zimmeth (owner) 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to set a public hearing for Monday, December 4, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

G. Waiver of Ordinances 7-1-5 (Parking in Parks), 7-1-6 (Park Closing Hours), to Allow Overnight 
Camping in Neshotah Park for Carnial Owners/Operators for Beach Bash, June 25-30, 2024 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to authorize overnight parking for three campers on the dates requested, in parking 
areas to be designated by the Park and Recreation Director 

H. Consideration of Whether to Participate in or "Opt Out" of Class Action Settlements Related to 
PFAS in Drinking Water Sources From Aqueous Film Forming Foams; Report from City 
Attorney 
--Settlement Involving DuPont de Nemours, Inc. and Others 
--Settlement Involving 3M Company 

I. Consideration of Tax Incremental Financing, Cash Grant and Developer's Performance 
Agreement Pertaining to West River Lofts, LLC Residential Development Project (To Replace 
Agreement Approved July 5, 2023 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to authorize the City Manager and City Clerk to sgin the agreement on behalf of the 
City 

J. Consideration of Easement Agreements Related to Public Shoreline Access and Shoreline 
and Public Trail Improvements in Conjunction With West River Lofts Residential 
Redevelopment Project 
(1)  Agreement With West River Lofts, LLC 
(2)  Agreement With Scott Crawford Financial, Inc. 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to authorize the City Manager and City Clerk to sign the agreements on behalf of the 
City  

11. FOR INFORMATION ONLY 
A. City Council Regular Meeting, Monday, November 20, 2023, 6:00 PM 
B. City Hall Closed Thursday, November 23 and Friday, November 24  
C. Lester Public Library Closed Thursday, November 23 
D. City Council Work Session Meeting, Monday, November 27, 6:00 PM 
E. No December Work Session Meeting 

12. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of this meeting and adjourn 

3



Please note, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs to disabled 
individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information or to request this service, 
please contact the Office of the City Manager by calling 793-5532. 

It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of governmental bodies of the municipality may be 
in attendance at the above stated meeting to gather information; no other action will be taken by any 
governmental body at the above-stated meeting other than the governmental body specifically referred 
to above in this notice. 

4



5

Section 8, ItemB.



6

Section 8, ItemB.



7

Section 8, ItemB.



8

Section 8, ItemB.



9

Section 8, ItemB.



10

Section 8, ItemB.



11

Section 8, ItemB.



12

Section 8, ItemB.



13

Section 8, ItemB.



14

Section 8, ItemB.



15

Section 8, ItemB.



16

Section 8, ItemB.



17

Section 8, ItemB.



18

Section 8, ItemB.



19

Section 8, ItemB.



20

Section 8, ItemB.



21

Section 8, ItemB.



22

Section 8, ItemB.



23

Section 8, ItemB.



24

Section 8, ItemB.



25

Section 8, ItemB.



26

Section 8, ItemB.



27

Section 8, ItemB.



28

Section 8, ItemB.



29

Section 8, ItemB.



30

Section 8, ItemB.



31

Section 8, ItemB.



32

Section 8, ItemB.



33

Section 8, ItemB.



34

Section 8, ItemB.



35

Section 8, ItemB.



36

Section 8, ItemB.



37

Section 8, ItemB.



38

Section 8, ItemB.



39

Section 8, ItemB.



40

Section 8, ItemB.



41

Section 8, ItemB.



42

Section 8, ItemB.



43

Section 8, ItemB.



44

Section 8, ItemB.



45

Section 8, ItemB.



46

Section 8, ItemB.



47

Section 8, ItemB.



48

Section 8, ItemB.



49

Section 8, ItemB.



50

Section 8, ItemB.



51

Section 8, ItemB.



52

Section 8, ItemB.



53

Section 8, ItemB.



54

Section 8, ItemB.



55

Section 8, ItemB.



56

Section 8, ItemB.



57

Section 8, ItemB.



58

Section 8, ItemB.



59

Section 8, ItemB.



60

Section 8, ItemB.



61

Section 8, ItemB.



62

Section 8, ItemB.



63

Section 8, ItemB.



64

Section 8, ItemB.



65

Section 8, ItemB.



66

Section 8, ItemB.



67

Section 8, ItemB.



68

Section 8, ItemB.



69

Section 8, ItemB.



70

Section 8, ItemB.



71

Section 8, ItemB.



72

Section 8, ItemB.



73

Section 8, ItemB.



74

Section 8, ItemB.



75

Section 8, ItemB.



76

Section 8, ItemB.



77

Section 8, ItemB.



78

Section 8, ItemB.



79

Section 8, ItemB.



80

Section 8, ItemB.



81

Section 8, ItemB.



82

Section 8, ItemB.



83

Section 8, ItemB.



84

Section 8, ItemB.



85

Section 8, ItemB.



86

Section 8, ItemB.



87

Section 8, ItemB.



88

Section 8, ItemB.



89

Section 8, ItemB.



90

Section 8, ItemB.



91

Section 8, ItemB.



92

Section 8, ItemB.



93

Section 8, ItemB.



94

Section 8, ItemB.



95

Section 8, ItemB.



96

Section 8, ItemB.



97

Section 8, ItemB.



98

Section 8, ItemB.



99

Section 8, ItemB.



100

Section 8, ItemB.



101

Section 8, ItemB.



102

Section 8, ItemB.



103

Section 8, ItemB.



104

Section 8, ItemB.



105

Section 8, ItemB.



106

Section 8, ItemB.



107

Section 8, ItemB.



108

Section 8, ItemB.



109

Section 8, ItemB.



110

Section 8, ItemB.



111

Section 8, ItemB.



112

Section 8, ItemB.



113

Section 8, ItemB.



114

Section 8, ItemB.



115

Section 8, ItemB.



116

Section 8, ItemB.



117

Section 8, ItemB.



118

Section 8, ItemB.



119

Section 8, ItemB.



120

Section 8, ItemB.



121

Section 8, ItemB.



122

Section 8, ItemB.



123

Section 8, ItemB.



124

Section 8, ItemB.



125

Section 8, ItemB.



126

Section 8, ItemB.



127

Section 8, ItemB.



128

Section 8, ItemB.



129

Section 8, ItemB.



130

Section 8, ItemB.



131

Section 8, ItemB.



132

Section 8, ItemB.



133

Section 8, ItemB.



134

Section 8, ItemB.



135

Section 8, ItemB.



136

Section 8, ItemB.



137

Section 8, ItemB.



138

Section 8, ItemB.



139

Section 8, ItemB.



140

Section 8, ItemB.



141

Section 8, ItemB.



142

Section 8, ItemB.



143

Section 8, ItemB.



144

Section 8, ItemB.



145

Section 8, ItemB.



146

Section 8, ItemB.



147

Section 8, ItemB.



148

Section 8, ItemB.



149

Section 8, ItemB.



150

Section 8, ItemB.



151

Section 8, ItemB.



152

Section 8, ItemB.



153

Section 8, ItemB.



154

Section 8, ItemB.



155

Section 8, ItemE.



 

   

                   RESOLUTION 

                      OPPOSING LEGISLATION THAT WOULD SUBJECT 

                     MUNICIPAL STORM WATER UTILITIES 

                 TO REGULATION BY THE  

                       PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION OF WISCONSIN  
  

WHEREAS,  the City of  Two Rivers established a municipal storm water utility in August 

of 2014, following considerable public input and deliberation by the City Council; and  

   WHEREAS, that utility has provided an important, dedicated funding source for storm 

water infrastructure investments necessary to comply with Federal and State storm water 

regulations and for routine replacement of existing storm water facilities in conjunction with street 

reconstruction projects throughout the City; and 

 WHEREAS, the Storm Water Utility has been managed responsibly by the City, with  

minimal administrative costs and with no change in the utility’s fee structure since its inception 

over nine years ago; the fee was and still is $5.75 per month per equivalent residential unit; and 

 WHEREAS, our city recently learned about the introduction of a bill in the Wisconsin 

Legislature—identified as Senate Bill 455 and Assembly Bill 457—that would subject such local 

storm water utilities to the full authority of the Public Service Commission to regulate rates and 

services; and 

WHEREAS, such regulation is not necessary, has the potential to be both costly and time-

consuming, and would unduly interfere with local control, by locally-elected governmental bodies, 

over this local infrastructure funding tool authorized by State Statute; 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Two 

Rivers does hereby join with the Wisconsin League of Municipalities and other local governments 

across the state in opposing any legislation that would impose such a regulatory burden on locally-

created and administered storm water utilities; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council hereby directs the City Manager to 

send copies of this resolution to State Senator Andre Jacque, to State Representative Shae Sortwell 

and to Wisconsin Governor Tony Evers, advising them of our position on this issue. 

Adopted this 6th day of November, 2023. 

 

________________________________ 

        Councilmember 

        

        ________________________________ 

        Gregory E. Buckley, City Manager 
156

Section 8, ItemE.



 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
Monday, October 16, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

 Council Chambers - City Hall, 3rd Floor 
1717 E. Park Street, Two Rivers, WI 54241 

 

 

MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Council President Wachowski called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ROLL CALL BY CITY CLERK 
Councilmembers: Jeff Dahlke, Bill LeClair, Darla LeClair, Tracey Koach, Tim Petri, Bonnie 
Shimulunas, Scott Stechmesser, Adam Wachowski 
ALSO PRESENT: Andrew Sukowaty, Water Utility Director; Matthew Heckenlaible, Director of 
Public Works; Mike Mathis, Parks & Recreation Director; Ben Meinnert, Police Chief, Dave Murack, 
Fire Chief; Jeff Dawson, Library Director; Brian Dellemann, Electric Utility Director; Dave Buss, 
Finance Director; Ben Meinnert, Police Chief; Elizabeth Runge, Community Development Director 
Rick Powell, IT Supervisor; and Greg Buckley, City Manager. 

4. CONSIDERATION OF ANY COUNCIL MEMBER REQUESTS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS 
MEETING FROM A REMOTE LOCATION 
None. 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 

A. Conditional Use Permit, Operation of a Drive-Through Accessing 15th Street, at 1509 
Washington Street, submitted by David Church, Applicant, and Owner 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to approve the Conditional Use Permit, as recommended by the Plan Commission 

City Manager Greg Buckley provided background on the ordinance amendment. 
 
The public hearing was opened by Council President Wachowski and three calls for public 
input were made. There was no one present and wishing to comment on the ordinance.  
 
Motion carried upon a roll call vote. 
 
Motion made by Dahlke, seconded by B. LeClair. 
Voting Yea: Dahlke, B. LeClair, D. LeClair, Petri, Shimulunas, Stechmesser, Wachowski. 
Voting no: Koach. 

6. INPUT FROM THE PUBLIC 
None. 

7. COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS 
Letters and other communications from citizens: 

Councilmember Dahlke had the following communications: 
• He stated he received a certified letter regarding the wind tower located in the industrial park. 

157

Section 9, ItemA.



• He received a question regarding an update on Spectrum.  
City Manager Greg Buckley responded he has not received a definitive answer on the status of the 
project. 

• He received a question regarding the cleanliness of 34th Street Laundromat.  

• He received a question asking what the City’s Bond rating is. 
Dave Buss, Finance Director will provide this information.  

Councilmember Petri had the following communications: 
• He received a question regarding zoning usage at the old Kingdom Hall building on 45th Street.  

Community Development Director Elizabeth Runge responded that a letter has been sent to the 
property owner to stop advertising outdoor storage in violation of the Zoning CodeThe Zoning 
Officer will follow-up with the resident phone call regarding this question. 

• He received a concern that the park near the library has broken swings. 
Mike Mathis, Park & Recreation Director, stated that he will have his staff inspect  and repair the 
swings. 

8. COUNCIL REPORTS FROM BOARDS/COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES 

Councilmember D. LeClair reported on the following boards: 

-- Environmental Advisory Board: The Board is concentrating on scheduling the Winter Educational 

Series; on October 5th, Electric Utility Director Brian Dellemann and Brady Steinholff, representative 

from Focus on Energy, discussed renewable energy resources. On November 2nd, Parks & Recreation 

Director Mike Mathis will be presenting on creating resilient parks and creating fun within the parks. 

There will not be a presentation in December but the series will resume in January, February, March, 

and April 2024. 

-- Main Street Board: The Fall Wine and Beer Walk is on October 27, 2023 from 5 PM – 8:30 PM. 

Downtown Trick or Treat is on Saturday October 28, 2023 from 11 AM – 2 PM. The Two Rivers 

Hometown Christmas Parade of Lights is quickly approaching, if interested in participating, an 

application can be picked up from Main Street along with the requirements.   

Councilmember Dahlke reported on the Finance and Personnel Committee: The Committee has  

reviewed the preliminary numbers from the City Manager on the special revenue funds.The next 

meeting is scheduled for Thursday, October 19th and everyone is welcome to attend the meeting at 

6:00 PM. 

Councilmember Wachowski reported that the Advisory Recreation Board has reviewed the online 

questions for the open space plan survey which will be out soon. He stated the new playground at 

Neshotah Beach is open and the board discussed the ice-skating rink and skate rentals. 

9. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

A. Invited Guests 
1. Benjamin Dax, Public Works Maintenance Worker 
Director of Public Works Matt Heckenlaible introduced Public Works Maintenance Workder 
Benjamin Dax to the Council. 

B. Status Update/Reports 
1. Staffing Updates 
Mr. Buckley reported on the ongoing recruitments: Building Inspector:Accepting / Reviewing 
Applications. Police Secretary – Evidence Custodian: Interviews Underway. Community House 
Receptionist: Interviews Completed. Recreation Clerk: Interviews Completed. Tourism 

158

Section 9, ItemA.



Director: upcoming. 
 
2. Employee Recognition 
Mr. Buckley asked for Andrew Sukowaty, Water Director and Brian Dellemann, Electric 
Director to provide details on recent employee awards. 
    a. Public Works Mechanic Kris Wondrash: AWWA 2023 Gimmicks and Gadgets Award, Kris 
salvaged the Water Utility’s valve turner from old truck 22 and retrofitted it to be easily placed 
in and out of the new leased trucks. Kris’s ingenuity on this project was recognized by the WI 
Section of the American Water Works Association, which awarded him the 2023 AWWA 
Gimmicks and Gadgets Award. 
    b. Utilities Administrative Assistant Gina Sampe, WPPI Shining Star Award, presented at 
WPPI Annual Meeting. 
 
3. Leaf Collection Underway; Continues Through November 
Mr. Buckley reported leaf pick up is scheduled to begin October 16. New for 2023 the City is 
split between 14 sections, crews will continue working through the City on an area by area 
basis. Areas will be selected based upon quantity of leaves and area updates will be posted 
on the City website and social media. 
 
4. Neshotah Park Playground Project 
    a. Project Completion Status 
Mr. Buckley shared a Parks and Recreation announcement that the fences are down, the 
swings are hung, and the slides are fast. The NEW Neshotah Park playground is open! The 
Wang Family was the first to stop in just as the fence came down.. 
    b. Dedication Event:  Rescheduled to October 22, Noon to 2:00 PM 
Mr. Buckley reported the rescheduled dedication is on Sunday, October 22, 12:00 noon to 
2:00 PM. Free cider and donuts. Cool City Brewing Company on-site serving coffee drinks, 
with all proceeds to support continued park improvements. 
  
5. East River Street Trail Extension 
Mr. Buckley reported that the new segment of the East River Street Bike Trail is complete and 
open to pedestrian traffic, with plans to extend it to connect to the Washington Street Bridge in 
2024. 
 
6. East Side Water Tower Maintenance and Painting 
Mr. Buckley reported the crews from Utility Service Company have been performing 
maintenance work on the east side water tower on Picnic Hill for the past month. The tower 
has been drained down and the interior inspected, sandblasted and re-coated. They worked 
hard to beat the weather, crews from Utility Service performed touch-up work on the water 
tower's exterior and applied the City's name and logo.  
 
7. Two Rivers Rotary Applefest Was Saturday, October 14 
Mr. Buckley congratulated and thanked Rotary Club of Two Rivers and all the volunteers and 
sponsors of the event. Applefest 2023 was a great success. 
 
8. Upcoming Events: 
    a. Senior Health & Information Fair, Wednesday, October 18, 10:00 AM - Noon, Rocheleau 
Gym 
    b. Main Street Fall Wine & Beer Walk, Friday, October 27, 5:00 - 8:30 PM, Downtown Two 
Rivers 
    c. Main Street Downtown Trick-or-Treating, Saturday, October 28, 11:00 AM - 2:00 PM 
    d. Halloween Trick-or-Treat, Tuesday, October 31, 4:30 - 7:00 PM, Two Rivers 
Neighborhoods 

159

Section 9, ItemA.



 
9. Other 
Mr. Buckley shared a photo of a flash from the past:   Two Rivers City Council, City Manager, 
City Clerk and City Attorney from 1925. 

Mr. Buckley reported the Two Rivers Senior Center along with sponsors will be serving a 
Community Thanksgiving Meal Thursday, November 23, 2023. If you are interested in 
volunteering, please call 920-793-5597. 

Mr. Buckley reported the park restrooms will be closed for the season after October 23, 2023. 

C. Legislative/Intergovernmental Update-None. 

10. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Presentation of Minutes 
1. City Council, October 2, 2023 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to waive reading and adopt the minutes 

B. Minutes of Meetings 
1. Lester Public Library, September 12, 2023 
2. Advisory Recreation Board, September 13, 2023 
3. Public Utilities Committee, October 3, 2023 
4. Public Works Committee, October 2, 2023 
5. Personnel & Finance Committee, September 28, 2023 
6. Board of Review, September 28, 2023 
7. Environmental Advisory Board, September 19, 2023 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to receive and file 

C. Department Reports, September, 2023 
1. City Clerk 
2. Community Development 
3. Electric 
4. Fire 
5. Inspections 
6. Library 
7. Parks & Recreation 
8. Police 
9. Public Works 
10. Safety 
11. Water 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to receive and file 

D. Finance Reports, September, 2023 
1. Debt Service 
2. General Fund 
3. Lester Library 
4. Utilities Report 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to receive and file 

160

Section 9, ItemA.



E. Applications and Petitions 
1. Application for Combination "Class A"/Class"A" License from Family Dollar Stores of 
Wisconsin LLC located at 1909 Washington Street 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to approve the application and authorize issuance of the license 

F. Summary of Verified Bills for the Month of September 2023 for $2,347,470.60 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to receive and file 

G. Zoning Text Ordinance Amendment Regarding Permitted Roofing Materials in Section 10-1-20 
of the Zoning Code 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to schedule a public hearing for November 6, 2023 at 6:00 PM, as recommended by 
the Plan Commission meeting on September 11, 2023 

RECOMMENDED ACTION FOR CONSENT AGENDA  
Motion to approve the Consent Agenda with the various actions recommended 
Motion carried with a voice vote. 
 
Motion made by Stechmesser, seconded by D. LeClair 
Voting Yea: Dahlke, Koach, B. LeClair, D. LeClair, Petri, Shimulunas, Stechmesser, 
Wachowski. 

11. CITY COUNCIL - FORMAL ITEMS 

A. Resolution adopting Amendment No. 1 to the Project Plan for Tax Incremental  District 14 at 
the Woodland Industrial Park 
Recommended Action: 
Motion to waive reading and adopt the resolution 
Motion carried with a roll call vote. 
 
Motion made by B. LeClair, seconded by Dahlke. 
Voting Yea: Dahlke, Koach, B. LeClair, D. LeClair, Petri, Shimulunas, Stechmesser, 
Wachowski 

B. Consideration of Three-Year Renewal of Agreement, for Calendar Years 2024-2026, With the 
Lakeshore Humane Society and the City of Manitowoc, Providing for the Housing and Care of 
Stray Animals From the Two Cities  
Recommended Action: 
Motion to authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement on behalf of the City 
Motion carried with voice vote. 
 
Motion made by D. LeClair, seconded by Dahlke. 
Voting Yea: Dahlke, Koach, B. LeClair, D. LeClair, Petri, Shimulunas, Stechmesser, 
Wachowski. 

Moved agenda item 14.FOR INFORMATION ONLY before going into closed session. 
1. Personnel and Finance Committee-Budget Review, Thursday, October 19 and 26, 2023 
2. City Council Work Session Meeting, Monday, October 30, 2023, 6:00 PM 
3. City Council Regular Meeting, Monday, November 6, 2023, 6:00 PM 

12. CLOSED SESSION 
The City Council reserves the right to enter into Closed Session, per Wisc. Stats 19.85(1)(e) 
deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investment of public funds, or 

161

Section 9, ItemA.



conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reason requires a 
closed session. 

--Consider possible City assistance to development project 

Motion carried with a roll call vote. 

Motion made by Stechmesser, seconded by Dahlke to convene in closed session at 6:59 PM. 
Voting Yea: Dahlke, Koach, B. LeClair, D. LeClair, Petri, Shimulunas, Stechmesser, Wachowski. 

13. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION 
To consider possible actions in follow up to closed session discussions. 
Motion carried with a voice vote. 
 
Motion made by Dahlke, seconded by D. LeClair to reconvene in open session at 7:08 PM. 
Voting Yea: Dahlke, Koach, B. LeClair, D. LeClair, Petri, Shimulunas, Stechmesser, Wachowski. 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion to dispense with the reading of the minutes of this meeting and adjourn this meeting at 7:08 
PM. 

Motion carried with a voice vote. 
 
Motion made by Dahlke, seconded by B. LeClair. 
Voting Yea: Dahlke, Koach, B. LeClair, D. LeClair, Petri, Shimulunas, Stechmesser, Wachowski 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Lisa Kuehn 
Deputy City Clerk 

 

162

Section 9, ItemA.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS CITY COUNCIL  

PERSONNEL AND FINANCE COMMITTEE 

Thursday, October 12, 2023 

6:00 PM 

City Council Chambers – City Hall  

 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Committee Chairman Dahlke at 6:02 PM 

 

Roll Call 
Committee Members present were Jeff Dahlke, Bonnie Shimulunas, and Adam Wachowski.  Staff present:  City 

Manager Greg Buckley. 

 

2024 Budget Review 

 

City Manager Buckley reviewed budgets for the various special revenue funds with the committee, with the 

exception of the TID funds, which were reviewed at the October 5 meeting.     These budgets included: 

 

Fund 202, Sandy Bay Highlands   

Fund 205, Housing Loan Fund 

Fund 207, Affordable Housing   

Fund 258, Community Tourism (info. only; jurisdiction of Room Tax Commission) 

Fund 259, Tourism Development (info. only; jurisdiction of Room Tax Commission) 

Fund 290, Economic Development Loan Fund 

Fund 417, Industrial Park Development 

Fund 218, Docks and Harbors 

Fund 250, Senior Center 

Fund 260, Urban Forestry 

Fund 262, Special Events Donations 

Fund 263, Tree Planting 

 

The City Manager noted that Community Development Director Elizabeth Runge will be reviewing the budget for 

Fund 291, Community Development, as a future meeting, and Parks and Rec Director Mike Mathis will re-visit 

the budgets for funds 218, 250, 260, 262 and 263 when he presents the Parks and Rec operating budget at a future 

meeting. 

 

There was no action taken at this meeting. 

 

Date and Time for Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the Personnel and Finance Committee will be Thursday, October 19, 2023 at 6:00 PM.    

That meeting will be the first of two dedicated to review of the 2024 General fund Budget. 

 

Adjournment 

Ther being no further business to come before the committee, Chairman Dahlke declared the meeting adjourned at 

7:35 PM. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

 

Gregory E. Buckley 

City Manager 

163

Section 9, ItemB.



164

Section 9, ItemB.



165

Section 9, ItemB.



166

Section 9, ItemB.



167

Section 9, ItemB.



 

JOINT MEETING EXPLORE TWO RIVERS MEETING OF 
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ROOM TAX 

COMMISSION 

Tuesday, October 24, 2023 at 6:00 PM 

 Woodland Dunes,  300 Hawthorne Ave, 
Two Rivers, WI 54241 

 

 

MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Explore Two Rivers Board of Directors Chairperson Joy Krieger called the meeting to order at 6:00 
PM. 
Room Tax Commissioner Rick Carey called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

2. ROLL CALL 

Explore Two Rivers Board Members Present: Rick Carey, Jeff Dawson, Brenda Koprowski, Gina 

Krahn, Joy Krieger, Mike Mathis, Nancy Nabak, Tonya Prosser, John Wyrostek. Absent and 

excused: Laura Prellwitz. (1 vacancy at this time) 

 Room Tax Commission Members Present: Greg Buckley, Rick Carey, Peter Crabbe, Bill LeClair. 
Absent and excused: Curt Andrews 

3. MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIR, JOY KRIEGER 

Chair of the Board of Directors, Joy Krieger thanked everyone for attending the evenings special 

ETR meeting.  She stated “that the recent loss of our explore director made it become apparent 

that our board of directors was left in a state of limbo.  The board needed clarity in areas of 

responsibility, delineation of roles and a clearer chain of command. Transparency to foster trust 

and communication would be the clear path forward.  Explore Two Rivers is a newly formed 

501c(6) nonprofit and she feels confident that with additional information and open dialogue it will 

be back on track shortly.  The board will have a stronger understanding of the organization and the 

collaboration that exists allowing the board to fulfill their role as anticipated when they were 

nominated to serve. We all deserve a do over, so I declare this our Mulligan moment!” 

4. REPORT ON TOURISM DIRECTOR POSITION VACANCY-CITY MANAGER GREG BUCKLEY 

AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR ELIZABETH RUNGE 

Mr. Buckley reported that Effective October 13, 2023, Brian Dean is no longer serving in the 

position of Tourism Director. His supervisor, Community Development Director Elizabeth Runge, is 

working with the City Manager to prepare an updated job listing which will be released this week, 

requesting applications by Monday, November 20, 2023.  

 Two representatives, each from the Room Tax Commission and the Board of Directors of Explore 

Two Rivers, Inc., will be invited to participate in the initial screening of applicants and in interviews.      

While the hiring authority for the position is vested in the City Manager, input from those Room Tax 

Commission (RTC) and Explore Two Rivers, Inc. (ETR) representatives will be carefully 

considered. 

 Intent is to have a new director on board as soon as possible; exact schedule hard to say, with the 

holiday season almost upon us. In the meantime, the core responsibilities of the position are being 

picked up by other City staff in  the Community Development Office and City Manager’s Office. 

168

Section 9, ItemB.



Examples: 2024 Visitor Guide marketing, Wisconsin Tourism Directory ad, digital billboard on 

northbound I-43, Two Minutes with Two Rivers. 

 The RTC directs spending of Room Tax monies. The RTC is Curt Andrews, Chair, Cool City 

Brewing Company; Rick Carey, Vice Chair, Two Rivers Hotel Group/Cobblestone; Bill LeClair, City 

Council Rep.; Peter Crabbe, Hamilton Wood Type and Printing Museum; and Greg Buckley, City 

Manager. The Room Tax Commission contracts with various organizations for tourism 

development and marketing: 

--City of Two Rivers for Tourism Director, a city employee who provides staff support to Explore 

Two Rivers, Inc. 

--Two Rivers Main Street, for visitor information services at Main Street’s Downtown Office 

--Two Rivers Historical Society, for visitor information services at Washington House 

--Explore Two Rivers, Inc., for development and implementation of marketing and outreach 

activities. 

 

5. STATUS REPORT ON 2023 TOURISM BUDGET FOR THE CITY—CITY MANAGER GREG 

BUCKLEY 

Mr. Buckley reported the Room Tax Revenue was conservatively budgeted at $270,000; projected 

to be $300,000. Out of that $300,000, $90,000 is retained by the City for municipal purposes, as 

allowed by State Statute.  Spending by the RTC for Tourism Promotion and Tourism Development 

activities was budgeted at $241,346; actual spending is projected at $204,813, for a projected 

year-end operating surplus of $23,947.  This will increase the fund balance in the Community 

Tourism Fund under the Room Tax Commission’s control to about $145,000. 

 

6. REPORT ON PROPOSED 2024 BUDGET FOR USE OF ROOM TAX FUNDS, TO BE 

PRESENTED TO ROOM TAX COMMISSION ON NOVEMBER 1, 2023 MEETING, INCLUDING 

FUNDS TO BE BUDGETED FOR TOURISM MARKETING AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 

BY EXPLORE TWO RIVERS, INC. 

 

Mr. Buckley summarized the 2024 draft Room Tax Budget: 

Annual Room Tax Revenue                                      $300,000 

Less:  30% Retained by City for Municipal Uses      (90,000) 

 

Available for Tourism Activities                               $210,000 

Cost of Director, Wages & Benefits                          (100,000) 

(Room Tax Commission Contracts with City) 

 

Room Tax Commission Funding Commitments:      (40,000) 

Visitor Info. Services by Main Street $12,000),  

Washington House ($3,000), Memorial Drive  

Wayside Maint. by City ($25,000) 

 

Balance Available for Marketing & Outreach          $70,000 

Activities of Explore Two Rivers, Inc.                                    

7. DISCUSS FRAMEWORK FOR EXPLORE TWO RIVERS, INC., RELATIONSHIP TO ROOM TAX 

COMMISSION AND CITY, BY-LAWS 

Mr. Buckley discussed the RTC and City Staff anticipate that key provisions of an agreement 

169

Section 9, ItemB.



between the RTC and ETR will include:   

-A clear statement that the RTC is providing room tax funds to ETR for purposes of developing and 

carrying out a tourism marketing and development plan for the community, with an overall goal of 

increasing overnight stays and increasing the economic impact of tourism in the City of Two Rivers. 

-A requirement that, as a condition of receiving this funding, ETR prepare and present an annual 
work plan and budget for approval by the RTC.   (Anticipate the work plan and budget will be 
presented and discussed at a joint meeting of two bodies.)    Also anticipate providing for one 
additional joint meeting, at mid-year, to review status of work plan implementation and discuss the 
overall “state of tourism” in Two Rivers. 

 -Provision that, to assist ETR in developing and executing its annual work plan, the RTC is funding 
the position of Tourism Director, a City of Two Rivers employee responsible for providing staff 
support to ETR. 

-Provision that, following approval of the annual work plan by the RTC, the funds to be provided by 
the RTC will be deposited into an account controlled by ETR and that ETR is authorized to expend 
those funds for activities consistent with its approved work plan and budget. 

-Provision that the City of Two Rivers will be fiscal agent for ETR, and as such will hold the room 
tax funds made available for ETR’s use in a separate fund, will provide ETR with monthly financial 
statements for that fund, and will handle all accounts payable and accounts receivable processing 
for that fund.  

-Recognition that ETR may pursue grants, donations and other non-room tax revenue for uses that 
are consistent with its  mission of tourism marketing and development for Two Rivers. 

8. DISCUSS PATH FORWARD, NOW THROUGH 2023 YEAR-END 

Mr. Buckley suggested the RTC will meet on November 1; agenda includes consideration of 

budget for use of room tax monies in 2024, begin discussion of contract with ETR. The ETR 

Marketing Committee will begin work on 2024 work plan—may not be finalized until early 2024, 

depending on Director availability.     The ETR Executive Committee will receive and review the 

proposed contract with RTC. The ETR November Board meeting will be the annual meeting as 

required by the by-laws, to include election of officers (November 14?), other business to include 

update on Tourism Director Recruitment.    ETR December Board meeting will include 

consideration of contract with RTC; update on Tourism Director recruitment/hiring.   

9. NEXT MEETING DATE 
Explore Two Rivers Annual Meeting, Tuesday, November 14, 2023, 7:30 PM, City Hall 

10. ADJOURNMENT at 6:20 pm. 

170

Section 9, ItemB.



 

ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY 
BOARD MEETING 

Tuesday, October 17, 2023, at 5:30 PM 

 Council Chambers - City Hall, 3rd Floor 
1717 E. Park Street, Two Rivers, WI 54241 

 

 

MINUTES 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  5:30 pm 
 

2. ROLL CALL  
Board Members Present:  Darla LeClair, Tracey Koach, Jay Orvis, Douglas Brandt, Shannon 
Derby, Corinne Weis, Donald DeBruyn 
Excused:  Jake Glaeser 
Staff:  Matthew Heckenlaible, Scott Ahl  
 

3. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Minutes from the September 19, 2023, Environmental Advisory Board Meeting  

Donald DeBruyn made a motion to approve the September 19, 2023, Environmental Advisory 
Board meeting minutes, seconded by Corinne Weis.  Motion carried. 
 

4. PUBLIC INPUT – None 
 

5. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND ACTION 
 
A.  Review & modify EAB mission statement and objectives  

 
There was a discussion by the Board with the conclusion of keeping the name simple, 
‘Environmental Advisory Board’ (EAB) and to strike language about pursuing funding 
opportunities and specific language pertaining to extreme weather events, Lake Michigan water 
level fluctuations and other statements pertaining to costs. 
 
The Board wants to see a cleaned up copy of the Mission Statement at the next meeting and 
then take further action as deemed appropriate. 

 
6. ONGOING PROJECTS 

 
A.  Front Yard Vegetable Garden update  
 
     Darla LeClair stated that Front Yard Vegetable Gardens (FYVG) were approved for 2024.      
     Darla has been in contact with the Two Rivers School Superintendent, Diane Johnson, and the  
     schools will do a competition for creating a ‘new’ FYVG yard sign for 2024.  Darla stated that  
     she hopes that it will be completed early this winter so that it is ready for the growing season.   
     She will reach out to Diane to confirm the timeline.   
 

171

Section 9, ItemB.



Doug Brandt had inquired about the raised vegetable gardens at LB Clarke Middle School 
whether or not they are compliant or will be allowed due to the remodeling that is proposed to 
take place there.  The response provided back was that it would all depend upon where they 
were located post building construction. 
 
Darla stated that in 2023 she had some agreements with some local businesses to help 
promote and offer discounts towards the FYVG program.  She will attempt to reach back out to 
these and other businesses for participation in 2024.  She is also looking for additional 
outreach ideas for promoting the FYVG program. 
 

B.   Winter Educational Series 
 
1.  2023 Series Dates:   
 
     Darla LeClair provided a recap of the October 5th, 2023, presentation on Benefits of  
     Renewable Resources and Energy Conservation.  She also stated that people should check  
     out the Focus on Energy website for free energy conservation materials. 

     November 2nd – Creating Fun and Resilient Parks, by Mike Mathis, Two Rivers Park Director 

2.  2024 Series Dates: 
 
* January 4th - Invasive Species in flora and fauna  
* February 1st - Local Eco-Systems 
* March 7th - Local Stormwater Management, Two Rivers Engineering Staff 
* April 4th  - Climate Change, WPPI 
* May 7th – Recycling, Manitowoc County – what can be recycled, where and where does it 
go from there including yard waste  (DPW to coordinate with the County) 

C.  Sandy Bay Highlands – update   
 
Matthew Heckenlaible stated that an updated layout with modeled stormwater features and 
revised lot layout was submitted back to the City for review and comment.  The proposal was 
affecting the lots by impacting usable yard spaces, especially in the side and backyards.  
Discussions were held with City Staff which generated questions and alternatives that were sent 
back to the Consultant for consideration.  The Consultant provided additional follow up and will 
submit a preliminary plat to the City by the end of October. 

7. OTHER ITEMS THAT MAY COME BEFORE THE BOARD, WITH CONSIDERATION AND 
ACTION, IF NEEDED 

 Corinne Weis inquired about the possibility of implementing “Bee Lawns” – low growing vegetation 
as an alternative to only turf grass within the roadway terrace area.  Director Heckenlaible provided 
rationale as to why turf grass is the standard within the City’s Municipal Code with a primary factor 
being safety.  Further discussion ensued around this topic.  Director Heckenlaible stated that he 
would pull together “Terrace Use Policies” from other municipalities and see if he can gain the feel 
of other Department Heads and possible other Council Members as to their views of vegetation 
other than turf grass within the terrace area.  This information could possibly be ready for the next 
meeting.  Discussion also revolved around possibly doing a demonstration project within a turf 

172

Section 9, ItemB.



planted boulevard section.  Director Heckenlaible stated that he may be open to that and would try 
and see what utilities may be impacted if that were to be done. 

 Director Heckenlaible stated that he received an email from the League of Municipalities about 
AB–457/SB–455 – Stormwater Utility Legislation subject of municipal stormwater utilities to the full 
authority of the Public Service Commission to regulate rates and services.  The short version is 
that this would take away local control on how municipalities fund and administer their stormwater 
utilities which are necessary due to the unfunded mandate being placed upon municipalities by the 
EPA and WDNR to clean up stormwater runoff prior to discharging to waters of the State/U.S. 
 

8. SET DATE, TIME, AND AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT BOARD MEETING 
Suggested as Tuesday, November 21, 2023, at 5:30 pm 

9. ADJOURNMENT:  6:59 pm 

Donald DeBruyn made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Jay Orvis.  Motion passed.   

 

 

173

Section 9, ItemB.



174

Section 9, ItemB.



175

Section 9, ItemB.



Jan - Aug, 2023 2023 Budget 2024 Budget

Income

   BID Receipts 47,645.91  50,000.00  50,000.00  

   City Contribution 12,000.00  12,000.00  17,500.00  

   Gifts in Kind

      Product -80.00  

      Sponsorship 250.00  

   Total Gifts in Kind $                        170.00  $                            0.00  $                            0.00  

   Grants 10,000.00  10,000.00  10,000.00  

   Non Profit Income

   Refund -39.15  

   Sales 3,560.75  8,000.00  

      Direct

         Entry fee 8,232.00  10,000.00  10,000.00  

         Food & Beverage 8,047.00  23,000.00  15,000.00  

         Membership 3,000.00  3,000.00  

         Raffle 200.00  

         Website Advertising -45.17  

      Total Direct $                   16,433.83  $                   36,000.00  $                   28,000.00  

      Indirect Sales 160.00  

         Craft Booth 3,000.00  3,000.00  4,000.00  

         Food Booth 5,800.00  4,800.00  7,000.00  

      Total Indirect Sales $                     8,960.00  $                     7,800.00  $                   11,000.00  

   Total Sales $                   28,954.58  $                   43,800.00  $                   39,000.00  

   Sales of Product Income 1,069.50  3,000.00  

   Sponsorship 10,560.00  675.00  

      Event Sponsorship 5,100.00  35,000.00  

         Trophy/plaques & awards 100.00  

      Total Event Sponsorship $                     5,200.00  $                            0.00  $                   35,000.00  

      General Sponsorship

         General 1,500.00  

         Major 16,000.00  

      Total General Sponsorship $                   17,500.00  $                            0.00  

   Total Sponsorship $                   33,260.00  $                   30,000.00  $                   35,000.00  

  Arts $                            0.00  $                     5,000.00  

  Workshops $                            0.00  $                     1,000.00  

Total Income $                 133,060.84  $                 154,800.00  $                 159,500.00  

Cost of Goods Sold

   Cost of Goods Sold 1,019.00  2,000.00  

Total Cost of Goods Sold $                     1,019.00  $                            0.00  

Gross Profit $                 132,041.84  $                 154,800.00  $                 157,500.00  

Total

2023 #'s January - August 

Budget Draft 2024

Two Rivers Main Street, Inc.

176

Section 9, ItemB.



Expenses

   Advertising 500.00  

      Advertising/Promotional

      Internet 69.00  

      Print 50.00  

   Total Advertising $                        119.00  $                     1,500.00  $                        500.00  

   Communication 77.97  

      internet 389.85  1,000.00  

      Telephone 35.20  

   Total Communication $                        503.02  $                     1,416.00  $                     1,000.00  

   Debt Service 295.16  

   Debt Write-ff

   Dues & Subscriptions 1,562.40  2,249.88  2,000.00  

   Equipment purchases

   Event Entertainment 15,645.00  20,000.00  18,000.00  

   Event Expenses 6,437.20  7,000.00  7,000.00  

      Consumables 124.36  1,000.00  

         Apparal 1,000.00  

         Food & Beverage 5,397.34  6,000.00  6,000.00  

         Trophies/awards 932.37  1,000.00  

      Total Consumables $                     6,454.07  $                     8,000.00  $                     7,000.00  

      Permits 30.00  300.00  100.00  

      Prizes

      Purchases 458.99  

      Rental 4,000.00  

   Total Event Expenses $                   13,380.26  $                   19,300.00  $                   14,100.00  

   Grants Given 10,000.00  

      Facade Grant 10,000.00  15,000.00  10,000.00  

      Sign Grant 168.50  1,000.00  

   Total Grants Given $                   20,168.50  $                   15,000.00  $                   11,000.00  

   Insurance 1,556.34  1,400.00  1,600.00  

      Health 5,500.00  6,000.00  6,000.00  

      Liability 1,200.00  1,200.00  

      Workmans Comp 914.00  468.00  1,000.00  

   Total Insurance $                     7,970.34  $                     9,068.00  $                     9,800.00  

   Interest expense 52.60  50.00  

   Meetings expense 40.00  500.00  

   Office Space Usage 5,317.61  10,000.00  10,000.00  

   Office Supplies & expenses 876.70  500.00  500.00  

   Payroll Expenses

      Taxes 4,213.12  4,000.00  5,500.00  

      Wages 41,671.97  55,000.00  65,000.00  

   Total Payroll Expenses $                   45,885.09  $                   59,000.00  

   Postage 25.20  150.00  100.00  

   Printing & Reproduction 200.00  1,500.00  500.00  

   Professional Fees

      Accounting

177

Section 9, ItemB.



         Tax Return 490.00  925.00  925.00  

      Total Accounting $                        490.00  $                        925.00  $                        925.00  

      Legal 54.00  

   Total Professional Fees $                        544.00  $                        925.00  $                        925.00  

   Purchases 3,762.50  4,000.00  

   Rent 2,549.56  

   Square Fees 266.14  

   Travel 500.00  

      Lodging

      Meals

      Mileage

   Total Travel $                            0.00  $                            0.00  $                        500.00  

   TRMS Rentals

      PO Box 210.00  210.00  

   Total TRMS Rentals $                            0.00  $                        210.00  $                        210.00  

   Uncategorized Expense 3,192.00  2,000.00  

 Arts 0.00  5,000.00  

 Workshops 1,000.00  

 Line of Crsdit Payback 10,000.00  

Total Expenses $                 122,355.08  $                 156,818.88  $                 146,185.00  

Net Operating Income $                     9,686.76  -$                    2,018.88  $                   11,315.00  

Other Expenses

   Adjustment -2,765.20  

Total Other Expenses $                            0.00  -$                    2,765.20  $                            0.00  

Net Other Income $                            0.00  $                     2,765.20  $                            0.00  

Net Income $                     9,686.76  $                        746.32  $                   11,315.00  

Wednesday, Sep 06, 2023 02:48:12 PM GMT-7 - Cash Basis

178

Section 9, ItemB.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     1

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/02/2023 134882 Prime Financial Commitment to Community Interest Refu 660-21130 6/14/2023 9.41-

          Total 134882: 9.41-

10/04/2023 135049 KONE CHICAGO Maintenance 7/1/23-9/30/23 660-59598-2900 871082898 406.59-

          Total 135049: 406.59-

10/16/2023 135553 Pagels, Sara A. Sale of unused cemetery spaces back to  100-46540 8/31/2023 750.00-

          Total 135553: 750.00-

10/05/2023 135734 4 K's Pest Control LLC General Pest Control - P&R 100-55200-2900 TR PARKS NESHOTA 210.00

10/05/2023 135734 4 K's Pest Control LLC General Pest Control - P&R 100-55140-2900 9/22/23 COMMUNITY HO 60.00

10/05/2023 135734 4 K's Pest Control LLC General Pest Control - P&R 100-55200-2900 09/21/23 VETS PARK 45.00

10/05/2023 135734 4 K's Pest Control LLC General Pest Control - P&R 100-55200-2900 9/21/23 WASHINGTON PA 60.00

          Total 135734: 375.00

10/05/2023 135735 Accurate Appraisal LLC January through September 2023 100-51530-2130 4368 48,150.00

10/05/2023 135735 Accurate Appraisal LLC Oct 2023 Services 100-51530-2130 4405 5,350.00

          Total 135735: 53,500.00

10/05/2023 135736 ADRC of the Lakeshore Sept 2023 Donations - Sr Ctr 250-23150 SEPTEMBER 2023 605.00

          Total 135736: 605.00

10/05/2023 135737 AECOM Technical Services Inc Seep Investigation 419-53600-2900 2000802498 7,281.93

          Total 135737: 7,281.93

10/05/2023 135738 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Supplies - Wtr 650-59643-3900 14HG-HCFG-9VDR 591.66

10/05/2023 135738 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Supplies - FD 100-52200-3850 1GLL-CWMD-9RH4 314.02

10/05/2023 135738 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Supplies - Sr. Center 250-55150-3900 1VRG-FMRG-NWH4 66.60

10/05/2023 135738 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Supplies - Sr. Center 250-55150-3900 1TFK-NRL3-PT9C 48.58

10/05/2023 135738 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Shop Supplies - DPW 100-53200-3900 1GFT-NJ63-NV11 319.51

          Total 135738: 1,340.37

10/05/2023 135739 B&M Waste Service Inc Portable Restroom Rental - Coast Guard  100-55200-2900 174740 420.00

179

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     2

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/05/2023 135739 B&M Waste Service Inc Portable Restroom Rental - LB Clarke 100-55300-2900 174784 90.00

          Total 135739: 510.00

10/05/2023 135740 Ball Auto & Truck Parts Inc Hardware - WWTP 690-59833-3900 312103 61.99

          Total 135740: 61.99

10/05/2023 135741 Belly River Corporation Hose & Lube - WWTP 690-59833-3900 23INV-263 955.36

          Total 135741: 955.36

10/05/2023 135742 Buelow Vetter Buikema Olson & Vliet LL Labor Attorney 100-51410-2130 162 7,217.50

10/05/2023 135742 Buelow Vetter Buikema Olson & Vliet LL Labor Attorney 100-51410-2130 163 825.00

10/05/2023 135742 Buelow Vetter Buikema Olson & Vliet LL Labor Attorney 100-51410-2130 164 110.00

10/05/2023 135742 Buelow Vetter Buikema Olson & Vliet LL Labor Attorney 100-51410-2130 165 1,650.00

10/05/2023 135742 Buelow Vetter Buikema Olson & Vliet LL Labor Attorney 100-51410-2130 166 82.50

10/05/2023 135742 Buelow Vetter Buikema Olson & Vliet LL Labor Attorney 100-51410-2130 167 922.50

          Total 135742: 10,807.50

10/05/2023 135743 Christmas Stars - APG Christmas Stars 2023 Final Payment 250-55150-3300 09/28/2023 736.00

          Total 135743: 736.00

10/05/2023 135744 City of Two Rivers Petty Cash Petty cash reimbursement 100-52400-3110 10/02/2023 1,576.01

          Total 135744: 1,576.01

10/05/2023 135745 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP Progress Billing/Dec 2022 Audit 100-51510-2110 3892421 5,355.00

          Total 135745: 5,355.00

10/05/2023 135746 Community First Credit Union Commitment to Community Interest Refu 660-21130 06/14/2023 9.41

          Total 135746: 9.41

10/05/2023 135747 DOA/Division of Energy Refund of Energy Assistance Funds - C  660-21131 09/27/2023 20.23

          Total 135747: 20.23

180

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     3

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/05/2023 135748 Dorner Company Check Valve Repair - Wtr 650-59678-2900 507505 1,750.00

          Total 135748: 1,750.00

10/05/2023 135749 Election Systems & Software 2 Handicapped Accessible Voting Machin 459-51600-8170 CD2066413 7,845.00

          Total 135749: 7,845.00

10/05/2023 135750 Emerald Transformer Regulator Cables - Elec 660-59595-3900 142016474 13,650.00

          Total 135750: 13,650.00

10/05/2023 135751 GFL Environmental Grit Dump - WWTP 690-59820-2900 U30000118107 302.21

          Total 135751: 302.21

10/05/2023 135752 Graybar Neshotah Park Project 660-19107 9333928452 12.96

          Total 135752: 12.96

10/05/2023 135753 John Fabick Tractor Company Plow Blades - PW 100-53330-3900 PIGB0212753 976.00

10/05/2023 135753 John Fabick Tractor Company Plow Blades - PW 100-53330-3900 PIGB0213248 2,499.75

10/05/2023 135753 John Fabick Tractor Company Generator Maintenance - WWTP 690-59820-2900 SIGP0012021 3,028.40

10/05/2023 135753 John Fabick Tractor Company Generator Maintenance - WWTP 690-59832-2900 SIGP0012025 4,414.52

10/05/2023 135753 John Fabick Tractor Company Supplies - Wtr 650-59665-2900 SIGP0012135 1,539.66

          Total 135753: 12,458.33

10/05/2023 135754 K & S Tire Recycling Inc. Tire Recylcling - PW 100-53200-2900 161332A 595.55

          Total 135754: 595.55

10/05/2023 135755 Klein, Patricia Ann Simply Seniors Exercise Class - 9/1/23-9 100-55300-2900 10/2/2023 74.40

          Total 135755: 74.40

10/05/2023 135756 Klein's Hardware Hank Hardware - WWTP 690-59833-3900 19906 25.47

10/05/2023 135756 Klein's Hardware Hank Balance Due on Account 650-59643-3900 100323 26.40

          Total 135756: 51.87

181

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     4

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/05/2023 135757 KONE Maintenance 10/01/2023-12/31/2023 660-59598-2900 871161813 406.59

10/05/2023 135757 KONE Maintenance 7/1/23-9/30/23 660-59598-2900 871082898 (RE-ISSUED) 406.59

          Total 135757: 813.18

10/05/2023 135758 Kulpa Jr, Frank Solar credit 660-21130 10/2/2023 199.40

          Total 135758: 199.40

10/05/2023 135759 Lester Public Library Foundation Half of Fall Book Sale 2023 280-48300 10/3/2023 373.81

          Total 135759: 373.81

10/05/2023 135760 Manitowoc Calumet Library System Tech-Lib 280-55110-2930 1101 5,779.54

          Total 135760: 5,779.54

10/05/2023 135761 Manitowoc Disposal Inc Empty Dumpsters - P&R 640-53620-2900 73574 520.00

10/05/2023 135761 Manitowoc Disposal Inc Landfill Fee 8/16/23 690-59820-2900 73757 211.03

10/05/2023 135761 Manitowoc Disposal Inc Recycling & Refuse Collect 9/17/23-9/30/ 640-53620-2900 9/17/2023-9/30/2023 15,024.20

          Total 135761: 15,755.23

10/05/2023 135762 Manitowoc Trophy Friendship Table Gold Satin 4x8 Engrave 100-51410-3100 44596 16.00

10/05/2023 135762 Manitowoc Trophy Directional Signs - City Hall 100-51600-3500 44002 90.00

10/05/2023 135762 Manitowoc Trophy Plaques - P & R 100-55300-3900 44651 99.00

10/05/2023 135762 Manitowoc Trophy Plaques - P & R 100-55300-3900 44650 152.00

          Total 135762: 357.00

10/05/2023 135763 Massey, Steve Install Roll-up Door on Storage Shed - Li 280-55110-2130 OCTOBER 3, 2023 100.00

          Total 135763: 100.00

10/05/2023 135764 MSA Professional Services Inc Remote System Training with Water Staff 650-59930-2920 R10511016.0-3 440.00

          Total 135764: 440.00

10/05/2023 135765 Northeast Wisc Tech College Apprenticeship - T. Duessing 660-59930-2920 SFT0000126044 216.00

182

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     5

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

          Total 135765: 216.00

10/05/2023 135766 Northern Lake Service Inc Copper & Lead Testing - Wtr 650-59642-2900 2315271 487.00

10/05/2023 135766 Northern Lake Service Inc Copper & Lead Testing - Wtr 650-59642-2900 2315277 487.00

10/05/2023 135766 Northern Lake Service Inc Copper & Lead Testing - Wtr 650-59642-2900 2315278 487.00

10/05/2023 135766 Northern Lake Service Inc 2023 WDNR Drinking Water 650-59642-3900 2315834 706.48

10/05/2023 135766 Northern Lake Service Inc 2023 Investigative Drinking Water' 650-59642-2900 2315847 133.18

10/05/2023 135766 Northern Lake Service Inc Copper & Lead Testing - Wtr 650-59642-2900 2315890 504.91

10/05/2023 135766 Northern Lake Service Inc Monthly TPC 650-59642-2900 2315938 45.17

          Total 135766: 2,850.74

10/05/2023 135767 OpenPoint LLC OpenPoint Subscription - Oct 2023 660-59923-2403 1434 1,960.00

          Total 135767: 1,960.00

10/05/2023 135768 Payment Service Network Services 9/1/2023-9/30/2023 690-59840-3900 283262 7.95

          Total 135768: 7.95

10/05/2023 135769 Payment Service Network CC Processing Fees/Donations - Septem 415-55410-2900 284118 15.00

          Total 135769: 15.00

10/05/2023 135770 Public Service Commission of Wisconsin PSC Direct Assessment - Elec 660-59408-9703 RA24-I-05990 11,732.51

          Total 135770: 11,732.51

10/05/2023 135771 Quarles & Brady LLP Safe Drinking Water Loan 650-19107 STATEMENT NO. 6654162 12,000.00

          Total 135771: 12,000.00

10/05/2023 135772 R&J Fricke Inc 9 Bag Concrete/15th & Jefferson - DPW 100-16120 15026 1,104.00

10/05/2023 135772 R&J Fricke Inc 6 Bag Concrete / 15th & Jefferson - DPW 100-16120 15027 693.00

          Total 135772: 1,797.00

10/05/2023 135773 Reinders Turface & Marking Chalk - P&R 100-55400-3900 2718794-00 1,219.80

183

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     6

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

          Total 135773: 1,219.80

10/05/2023 135774 Renegade Pest Management Pest Control - City Hall 100-51600-3500 11843 250.00

          Total 135774: 250.00

10/05/2023 135775 RESCO Supplies-Elec 660-59594-3900 3005322 3,898.60

10/05/2023 135775 RESCO Supplies-Elec 660-59593-3900 3005304 651.25

          Total 135775: 4,549.85

10/05/2023 135776 Schaus Roofing/Mechanical Service - Sr. Center 100-55140-2900 SD8973 582.68

          Total 135776: 582.68

10/05/2023 135777 Schindler Elevator Company Quarterly Billing 10/1/23-12/31/23 - Com 100-55140-2900 8106368294 938.73

          Total 135777: 938.73

10/05/2023 135778 Suettinger's Keys LLC Lockset / Deadbolts - P&R 415-55410-8200 124379 1,353.04

10/05/2023 135778 Suettinger's Keys LLC Double Cut Keys - Elec 660-19184 124382 7.50

10/05/2023 135778 Suettinger's Keys LLC Primus Keys - Wtr 650-59643-3900 124384 43.80

10/05/2023 135778 Suettinger's Keys LLC GI LSDA Lever Locksets; Primus Cylinde 650-59643-3900 124413 2,358.20

          Total 135778: 3,762.54

10/05/2023 135779 Superior Chemical LLC Supplies - CH 100-51600-3500 373865 150.52

10/05/2023 135779 Superior Chemical LLC Supplies - CH 100-51600-3500 374481 65.11

          Total 135779: 215.63

10/05/2023 135780 Two Rivers Historical Society Oct 2023 Monthly Support Pymt 258-56700-2910 OCT2023 250.00

          Total 135780: 250.00

10/05/2023 135781 Van Rite Plumbing Inc. 1700 Block Lincoln Street - Service Repl 690-19107 009455 29,340.00

          Total 135781: 29,340.00

10/05/2023 135782 West & Dunn LLC Monthly Flat Fee - August 2023 100-51340-2120 8089 5,959.11

184

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     7

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/05/2023 135782 West & Dunn LLC General Legal Matters 100-51340-2120 8090 40.00

10/05/2023 135782 West & Dunn LLC Transcript of March 9, 2023, Oral Decisio 100-51340-2120 7256 21.50

          Total 135782: 6,020.61

10/05/2023 135783 Wisconsin Public Service CITY HALL 100-51600-2220 0401271669-24;9/23 58.44

10/05/2023 135783 Wisconsin Public Service 1916 COLUMBUS ST - Elec 660-59588-2220 0401271669-10;9/23 28.60

10/05/2023 135783 Wisconsin Public Service Bridge Bldg - Engineering 100-53341-2220 0401271669-30;9/23 16.21

10/05/2023 135783 Wisconsin Public Service WARM BLDG 100-55200-2220 0401271669-12;9/23 16.77

10/05/2023 135783 Wisconsin Public Service PARK SHELTER 100-55200-2220 0401271669-14;9/23 16.21

10/05/2023 135783 Wisconsin Public Service CEMETERY 100-54910-2220 0401271669-05;9/23 16.21

10/05/2023 135783 Wisconsin Public Service 1520 17TH ST - Rec 100-55140-2220 0401271669-04;9/23 176.35

10/05/2023 135783 Wisconsin Public Service 1300 35th Street - Rec 100-55400-2220 0401271669-07;9/23 18.90

10/05/2023 135783 Wisconsin Public Service 1401 Lake Street 660-49390 0401271669-35;9/23 191.85

          Total 135783: 539.54

10/12/2023 135784 4 K's Pest Control LLC Pest control - Wtr 650-59665-2900 100923W 600.00

10/12/2023 135784 4 K's Pest Control LLC Pest Control for 1 Year - Electric 660-59923-2902 100923E 1,200.00

          Total 135784: 1,800.00

10/12/2023 135785 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Sewer Jetter Kit for Pressure Washer - R 100-55200-3900 1RLD-G1YH-C317 127.75

10/12/2023 135785 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Grinding Disc-Rec 100-53200-3900 19YJ-44MN-D4YP 365.95

10/12/2023 135785 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Supplies - City Hall 100-51600-3500 1X37-1NRX-9WN7 185.08

          Total 135785: 678.78

10/12/2023 135786 AnSer Services Services - Elec 650-59665-2900 6502-100123 220.00

          Total 135786: 220.00

10/12/2023 135787 Arthur J Gallagher RMS Inc 2023-2024 Renewal - Pub Officials / Cyb 100-16310 4866279 45,022.50

          Total 135787: 45,022.50

10/12/2023 135788 Aurora EAP EAP - Quarterly 10/1/23-12/31/23 500-51510-2900 505-CI0003423 702.72

          Total 135788: 702.72

10/12/2023 135789 Aurora Health Care Drug Screens & Pre Placement testing 100-52200-2100 143326 626.00

185

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     8

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

          Total 135789: 626.00

10/12/2023 135790 Braun Building Center Base zipper Boot flash - Rec 100-55400-3900 BB077665301 84.15

10/12/2023 135790 Braun Building Center Supplies - Rec 100-55400-3900 BB077662901 1,000.00

          Total 135790: 1,084.15

10/23/2023 135791 Buelow Vetter Buikema Olson & Vliet LL Labor Attorney 100-51410-2130 STATEMENT NO 169 .00

          Total 135791: .00

10/12/2023 135792 Bureau Veritas Nat'l Elev Insp Serv LLC Hamilton Community House-Inspection 100-55140-2900 4138409 / 9.25.2023 90.20

          Total 135792: 90.20

10/12/2023 135793 Carron Net Company Inc Tennis Nets / Washington Park 100-55300-3900 402446 1,167.15

          Total 135793: 1,167.15

10/12/2023 135794 Child's World, The Books JNF - Lib 280-55112-3400 NA157737 137.70

          Total 135794: 137.70

10/12/2023 135795 Cool City Cleaners Inc Towel/Mop Cleaning - WTP 690-59820-2900 0164 56.00

          Total 135795: 56.00

10/12/2023 135796 Coughlan Companies LLC Books JNF - Lib 280-55112-3400 334554 406.30

          Total 135796: 406.30

10/12/2023 135797 Country Visions Cooperative Diesel - DPW 100-53200-2410 338401 2,243.79

          Total 135797: 2,243.79

10/12/2023 135798 Cretton Enterprises Inc Sept 2023 Services - Lib 280-55110-3560 11661 1,540.84

10/12/2023 135798 Cretton Enterprises Inc Sept 2023 Services - Rec 100-55410-2900 11660 2,980.90

10/12/2023 135798 Cretton Enterprises Inc Spray Knot Weed - Rec 100-55410-2900 11731 255.00

186

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     9

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

          Total 135798: 4,776.74

10/12/2023 135799 Dave's Tree Service Inc Tree trimming - Elec 660-59593-2900 42262 2,400.00

          Total 135799: 2,400.00

10/12/2023 135800 Dixon Engineering Inc High Lift Cleaning / Maintenance 650-59672-2900 23-1082 5,000.00

          Total 135800: 5,000.00

10/12/2023 135801 Fastenal Vending-Elec 660-59588-3900 WIMAN302065 2,352.06

10/12/2023 135801 Fastenal Vending-Wtr 650-59921-3100 WIMAN302061 184.01

10/12/2023 135801 Fastenal Screws-Elec 660-59594-2900 WIMAN302005 98.40

          Total 135801: 2,634.47

10/12/2023 135802 Fire Dept Petty Cash Petty cash reimbursement 100-52200-3500 10/10/2023 126.37

          Total 135802: 126.37

10/12/2023 135803 Forster, Robert Translation Service Incident # 23-04989 -  100-52100-2100 INCIDENT #23-04989 42.40

          Total 135803: 42.40

10/12/2023 135804 Frank's Radio Service Inc. Service Agreement for October 2023 - F 100-52200-2900 123952 219.00

10/12/2023 135804 Frank's Radio Service Inc. Battery - FD 100-52200-2900 123997 148.68

          Total 135804: 367.68

10/12/2023 135805 Fricke Printing Services Inc Envelopes - Community Development 291-56700-3100 250998 36.95

10/12/2023 135805 Fricke Printing Services Inc Rack Cards-Hit the Water - Elizabeth 258-56700-2910 250999 66.10

          Total 135805: 103.05

10/12/2023 135806 Garage Door Specialty LLC Overhead Door Repair - DPW 100-53200-3900 4231 140.00

          Total 135806: 140.00

10/12/2023 135807 Grainger HD Limit Switch - WWTP 690-59834-3900 9849243093 236.83

10/12/2023 135807 Grainger Impact Drill-Elect 660-59588-3900 9845023812 279.00

187

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     10

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/12/2023 135807 Grainger Impact Drill Return - Elec 660-59588-3900 9852503813 279.00-

          Total 135807: 236.83

10/12/2023 135808 Green Acres Landscaping Inc. Sod-Cem 100-54910-3900 37387 96.00

          Total 135808: 96.00

10/12/2023 135809 Hallman Lindsay Natural Wood Toner Cedartor - Parks Pic 100-55200-3900 J0207252 63.49

          Total 135809: 63.49

10/12/2023 135810 Hawkins Inc Azone-15 & Ortho - Wtr 650-59641-3910 6581062 9/15/23 4,544.89

10/12/2023 135810 Hawkins Inc Azone-15 650-59641-3910 6596259 1,160.60

          Total 135810: 5,705.49

10/12/2023 135811 HMF Innovations Inc Tables; Trash Recepticles; Bike Rack; Be 415-55410-8200 1262 23,557.00

          Total 135811: 23,557.00

10/12/2023 135812 Hubbartt Electric Inc Labor / Land Wire PLC Panel - Wtr 650-59678-2900 19749 142.50

          Total 135812: 142.50

10/12/2023 135813 HydroCorp Cross Connection Control Prog -  Sept 2 650-59664-2900 0074437-IN 3,280.00

          Total 135813: 3,280.00

10/12/2023 135814 James Imaging Systems Inc. Contract R14490-MPS-01 9/29/2023-10/ 660-59921-3900 1365969 366.22

          Total 135814: 366.22

10/12/2023 135815 Kaat's Water Conditioning Inc Water - 6303 Riverview Dr 419-53600-2900 09/30/2023 60.74

          Total 135815: 60.74

10/12/2023 135816 Kemira Water Solutions Inc FERRIC CHLORIDE - WWTP 690-59824-4910 1003906017 11,609.00

          Total 135816: 11,609.00

188

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     11

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/12/2023 135817 Lac Bay Community Assets Refund of utilities paid 9/6/22 by title Co  660-21130 10/4/2023 218.77

          Total 135817: 218.77

10/12/2023 135818 Lakeshore Pressure Washing & Cleaning Maint-Lib 280-55110-2410 0080 410.00

          Total 135818: 410.00

10/12/2023 135819 Laxton, Erick Refund of Park Shelter - Rec 100-23100 10/09/2023 100.00

          Total 135819: 100.00

10/12/2023 135820 Lerner Publishing Group Books JNF - Lib 280-55112-3400 1469871 22.99

10/12/2023 135820 Lerner Publishing Group Books JNF - Lib 280-55112-3400 1469211 101.26

          Total 135820: 124.25

10/12/2023 135821 Lindner Ace Hardware Manitowoc Key for Jeep - PW 100-16120 217939 5.99

          Total 135821: 5.99

10/12/2023 135822 MacQueen Equipment Fender & Panel - DPW 100-16120 P31151 1,638.71

          Total 135822: 1,638.71

10/12/2023 135823 Manitowoc Public Utilities 2124 Woodland Dr-WTP 690-59820-2210 106902;9/23 27.48

10/12/2023 135823 Manitowoc Public Utilities Standby Water/5000 Memorial Drive - Wt 650-59602-2900 9/30/23 636.96

          Total 135823: 664.44

10/12/2023 135824 Manitowoc Trophy Manitowoc County Board of Realtors/Frie 100-51410-3100 44658 36.00

          Total 135824: 36.00

10/12/2023 135825 Marco Prof Serv - Library 280-55110-2130 35006800 280.80

          Total 135825: 280.80

10/12/2023 135826 Maritime Ford Veh#27 Repair - Elec 660-19184 23708 455.07

189

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     12

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

          Total 135826: 455.07

10/12/2023 135827 Masimo Rainbow DCI, Rainbow RC2-EMS - FD 270-52300-2100 3227696 954.00

          Total 135827: 954.00

10/12/2023 135828 Memorial Drive Vet Clinic Xanti - PD 461-52100-8150 342495 54.49

          Total 135828: 54.49

10/12/2023 135829 Mid-American Research Chemical Supplies-Rec 100-55200-3900 0801256-IN 809.20

          Total 135829: 809.20

10/12/2023 135830 Nelson Sign & Graphics White Coroplast - Rec 415-55410-8200 6/7/23 284.80

          Total 135830: 284.80

10/12/2023 135831 North Central Laboratories Lab  Supplies-WTP 690-59820-3900 493356 1,235.64

          Total 135831: 1,235.64

10/12/2023 135832 ODP Business Solutions LLC Office Supplies - Clerk 100-51420-3100 329071907001 18.45

10/12/2023 135832 ODP Business Solutions LLC Office Supplies - Clerk 100-51420-3100 332731784001 8.13

          Total 135832: 26.58

10/12/2023 135833 Penworthy Company LLC, The Books JF - Lib 280-55112-3420 0593461-IN 160.78

          Total 135833: 160.78

10/12/2023 135834 Quadient Finance USA Inc. Quarterly postage lease 8/2/23-11/1/23 100-51900-5310 Q1005243 489.03

          Total 135834: 489.03

10/12/2023 135835 R&J Fricke Inc 6 Bag Concrete -Jefferson Bike Trail - DP 100-16120 15114 2,520.00

          Total 135835: 2,520.00

10/12/2023 135836 RESCO Supplies - Elec 660-19154 3005498 461.82

190

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     13

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/12/2023 135836 RESCO Supplies - Elec 660-59593-3900 3005500 240.54

10/12/2023 135836 RESCO Supplies - Elec 660-59593-3900 3005667 764.00

10/12/2023 135836 RESCO Supplies-Elec 660-59593-3900 3006746 382.00

10/12/2023 135836 RESCO Supplies-Elec 660-59593-3900 3007039 562.50

10/12/2023 135836 RESCO Supplies-Elec 660-59595-3900 3007046 159.60

10/12/2023 135836 RESCO Supplies-Elec 660-59593-3900 3007344 450.75

10/12/2023 135836 RESCO Supplies-Elec-Credit Memo 660-59593-3900 3006493 100.00-

          Total 135836: 2,921.21

10/12/2023 135837 Sabel Mechancial LLC Sludge Hauling - WWTP 690-59820-2900 230620 14,138.00

          Total 135837: 14,138.00

10/12/2023 135838 Schroeder Bros Co Shipping - WWTP 690-59820-3900 94748 143.76

          Total 135838: 143.76

10/12/2023 135839 SEERA Focus Program - 9/30/2023 660-29253 10/10/2023 4,281.34

          Total 135839: 4,281.34

10/12/2023 135840 Shawn Williams Creative-Social Media Sept services - Elizabeth Runge 258-56700-2910 919 1,150.00

          Total 135840: 1,150.00

10/12/2023 135841 Storm the Lawn Pro LLC Treatment - Rec 100-55400-2900 231081 114.13

          Total 135841: 114.13

10/12/2023 135842 TAPCO Parkfolio Hosting Fee - Aug 2023 218-53540-2900 I763769 108.00

10/12/2023 135842 TAPCO Parkfolio Hosting Fee - Sep 2023 218-53540-2900 I763782 108.00

          Total 135842: 216.00

10/12/2023 135843 Thuermer Law Office Municipal Prosecuting - September 2023 100-51340-2121 SEPTEMBER 27, 2023 1,607.00

          Total 135843: 1,607.00

10/12/2023 135844 Two Rivers Automotive Inc. Fram Def 2.5 Gal - FD 100-52210-3410 5172-298486 63.96

10/12/2023 135844 Two Rivers Automotive Inc. Trufuel 50 a Premix - FD 100-52210-2900 5172-296542 17.98

191

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     14

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/12/2023 135844 Two Rivers Automotive Inc. Battery AAAA - Rec 100-54910-3900 5172-298753 7.39

          Total 135844: 89.33

10/12/2023 135845 Two Rivers Main Street Inc. Holiday Parade Entry Fee-Elec 660-59930-3900 10/10/2023 10.00

          Total 135845: 10.00

10/12/2023 135846 Unique Prof Serv - Lib 280-55110-2130 6118027 104.85

          Total 135846: 104.85

10/12/2023 135847 US Alliance Fire Protection Inc. Maint - Lib 280-55110-2410 1046-F114315 250.00

          Total 135847: 250.00

10/12/2023 135848 USA Blue Book Supplies - Wtr 650-59643-3900 00141565 15.55

10/12/2023 135848 USA Blue Book CL2 Free reagent, LC17, DPD, Etc...WTr 650-59643-3900 INV00152159 709.34

          Total 135848: 724.89

10/12/2023 135849 UV Superstore UV Disinfection Light - WWTP 690-59833-3900 23-148990 4,846.88

          Total 135849: 4,846.88

10/12/2023 135850 UW - Madison CPM Madison Hybrid Tuition - Rec 100-55140-2920 1 3,900.00

          Total 135850: 3,900.00

10/12/2023 135851 Ventec Life Systems Supplies Freight Charge - FD 100-52300-3900 11748 25.96

          Total 135851: 25.96

10/12/2023 135852 Water Quality Investigations LLC Services from 09/04/23-10/01/23 - WTR 650-59923-2900 0923_34 1,555.14

          Total 135852: 1,555.14

10/12/2023 135853 Wisc State Laboratory/Hygiene Sept Fluoride Samples - Wtr 650-59642-2900 755303 28.00

          Total 135853: 28.00

192

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     15

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/12/2023 135854 Wisconsin Public Service FIRE DEPT 100-52200-2220 0401271669-3;9/23 133.43

10/12/2023 135854 Wisconsin Public Service RESEVOIR 650-59661-2220 0401271669-2;9/23 20.50

10/12/2023 135854 Wisconsin Public Service 2615 13th Street Tower 650-59661-2220 0401271669-25;9/23 16.21

10/12/2023 135854 Wisconsin Public Service 2318 Picknic Hill Ln - Tower 650-59661-2220 0401271669-26';9/23 16.21

10/12/2023 135854 Wisconsin Public Service HIGH LIFT 650-59626-2220 0401271669-32;9/23 28.60

          Total 135854: 214.95

10/12/2023 135855 WOMT Tourism Advertising 258-56700-2910 415-00002-0002 418.00

10/12/2023 135855 WOMT Tourism Advertising 258-56700-2910 415-00003K-0002 342.00

          Total 135855: 760.00

10/12/2023 135856 WPPI - Debit Memo Sept 2023 Purchased Power 660-59902-2900 25-92023 647,472.97

          Total 135856: 647,472.97

10/12/2023 135857 WPPI Energy Water Plant equipment retrofit 650-29224 INV19956 390.23

          Total 135857: 390.23

10/12/2023 135858 Zoro Tools Inc. Supplies - Wtr 650-59643-3900 13069294 311.95

10/12/2023 135858 Zoro Tools Inc. Supplies - Wtr 650-59626-3900 13092424 59.03

          Total 135858: 370.98

10/19/2023 135859 Airgas USA LLC Cylinder Rental - WWTP 690-59833-2900 5502170802 359.01

          Total 135859: 359.01

10/19/2023 135860 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Supplies - City Hall 100-52400-3100 1WKX-9KPK-9KGQ 153.69

10/19/2023 135860 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Supplies - ENG 100-53100-3100 1361-TDMH-9YHY 8.95

10/19/2023 135860 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Supplies - ELEC 660-19184 1LMH-ML69-9VGN 369.18

10/19/2023 135860 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Supplies - PW 100-53200-3900 19NM-3N6Q-9YV7 248.60

          Total 135860: 780.42

10/19/2023 135861 Ball Auto & Truck Parts Inc 15W40 Oil - PW 690-59833-3900 313474 67.96

          Total 135861: 67.96

193

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     16

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/19/2023 135862 Border States Industries Inc Galvanized Lock Nuts - Elec 660-59593-3900 927173730 103.43

          Total 135862: 103.43

10/19/2023 135863 Center Point Large Print Alp-Lib 280-55111-3430 2040281 358.95

          Total 135863: 358.95

10/19/2023 135864 City Of Manitowoc Q3 - 2023 Bus Service 100-53520-2900 0435835 24,763.75

          Total 135864: 24,763.75

10/19/2023 135865 Dellemann, Brian Energy Star - Clothes Dryer 660-29253 10/17/2023 25.00

          Total 135865: 25.00

10/19/2023 135866 Eesley, Todd & Sally Energy Star - Dishwasher 660-29253 10/17/2023 25.00

          Total 135866: 25.00

10/19/2023 135867 ENTERPRISE FM TRUST Lease Payments - Multiple Vehicles 690-59828-2410 FBN4867645 19,212.47

          Total 135867: 19,212.47

10/19/2023 135868 Fastenal Vending-Elec 660-59593-3900 WIMAN302326 2,004.17

          Total 135868: 2,004.17

10/19/2023 135869 Fearing's Satellite & Sound Inc Central Park West 365 Audio System 415-55410-8200 72384 9,626.49

          Total 135869: 9,626.49

10/19/2023 135870 FedEx Shipping - Belt Press Belt - WWTP 690-59820-2900 2-204-48045 76.20

          Total 135870: 76.20

10/19/2023 135871 Fireside Theatre, The May 30th Fireside trip: Nunsense 250-55150-3300 OCTOBER 12, 2023 50.00

          Total 135871: 50.00

10/19/2023 135872 Frank's Radio Service Inc. Remote Speaker Mic w/Audio - PD 100-52115-3230 123983 256.61

194

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     17

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

          Total 135872: 256.61

10/19/2023 135873 Garage Door Specialty LLC Fix Police Door - PD 100-51600-3500 4346 1,122.08

          Total 135873: 1,122.08

10/19/2023 135874 Grainger Misc Drill Shank - WWTP 690-59834-3900 9867107493 75.67

          Total 135874: 75.67

10/19/2023 135875 Hubbartt Electric Inc Maintenance - Lib 280-55110-2410 19845 43.00

          Total 135875: 43.00

10/19/2023 135876 James Imaging Systems Inc. Customer Service Printer 660-19391 1368385 1,176.25

          Total 135876: 1,176.25

10/19/2023 135877 James Leasing LLC Lease Agreement JL-502 10/6/2023-11/5 100-54150-2900 14256 117.28

          Total 135877: 117.28

10/19/2023 135878 Klein's Hardware Hank Supplies - P&R 100-55140-3500 22270 30.36

          Total 135878: 30.36

10/19/2023 135879 Krajnik Chevrolet Truck 17 Side Mirror Replacement - Elec 660-19184 41857 800.25

          Total 135879: 800.25

10/19/2023 135880 Manitowoc Disposal Inc Recycling & Refuse Collect 10/1/2023-10 640-53620-2900 10/20/2023 15,024.20

10/19/2023 135880 Manitowoc Disposal Inc Empty Dumpsters - P&R 640-53620-2900 73899 200.00

          Total 135880: 15,224.20

10/19/2023 135881 McMahon Associates Inc Eggers Pond Environmental Investigatio 680-19107 932339 362.00

          Total 135881: 362.00

10/19/2023 135882 Mid-American Research Chemical Supplies - Cemetary 100-54910-3900 0800909-IN 326.14

195

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     18

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

          Total 135882: 326.14

10/19/2023 135883 Midwest Chemical & Equipment Belt Press Polymer - WWTP 690-59820-2900 7214 11,679.00

          Total 135883: 11,679.00

10/19/2023 135884 Municipal Elec Utilities of WI Regional Safety Progrom - Q4 2023 Prog 690-59852-2900 101323-28 7,437.50

          Total 135884: 7,437.50

10/19/2023 135885 North Central Laboratories Lab Chemical Supplies - WWTP 690-59820-3900 494075 637.48

          Total 135885: 637.48

10/19/2023 135886 PrecisionChem LLC On-Site Testing & System Evaluation-Re 100-55200-2900 16576 105.00

          Total 135886: 105.00

10/19/2023 135887 Premium Waters Inc Lab Water - WTP 690-59820-2900 391108621 125.98

          Total 135887: 125.98

10/19/2023 135888 R&J Fricke Inc 6 Bag Concrete / East Street & Jefferson  100-16120 15073 2,520.00

10/19/2023 135888 R&J Fricke Inc 9 & 6 Bag Concrete - 15th Street & Jeffer 100-16120 15072 2,124.00

10/19/2023 135888 R&J Fricke Inc 9 Bag Concrete/15th & Jefferson - DPW 100-16120 15071 1,725.00

          Total 135888: 6,369.00

10/19/2023 135889 RESCO Supplies - Elec 660-59593-3900 3007511 790.23

          Total 135889: 790.23

10/19/2023 135890 Resilient Minds On The Front Lines Resiliency Trianing - FD 270-52300-2100 1103 10,000.00

          Total 135890: 10,000.00

10/19/2023 135891 Rutherford Canvas New Awning For Electric Dept Bldg 660-59930-2900 2023-2198 1,240.00

          Total 135891: 1,240.00

196

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     19

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/19/2023 135892 Sara Pagels Sale of unused cemetery spaces back to  100-46540 10/17/2023 750.00

          Total 135892: 750.00

10/19/2023 135893 Sparta Free Library Lost Interlibrary Loan Book 280-55111-3400 10/12/2023 16.47

          Total 135893: 16.47

10/19/2023 135894 Storm the Lawn Pro LLC Service-Rec 100-55400-2900 230981 1,085.59

          Total 135894: 1,085.59

10/19/2023 135895 Superior Chemical LLC Supplies - CH 100-51600-3500 375587 271.00

          Total 135895: 271.00

10/19/2023 135896 Susie Q Fish Company Inc Putting in and taking out river bouys - Re 218-53540-2900 39349 800.00

          Total 135896: 800.00

10/19/2023 135897 Town & Country Engineering Inc. 2022 SDW and CWF Loan Assistance 650-19107 25856 415.00

10/19/2023 135897 Town & Country Engineering Inc. 2023 SDW  & CWF Loan Assistance 650-19107 25857 207.50

10/19/2023 135897 Town & Country Engineering Inc. Screw Press - Change Order - Roof 690-19107 25858 310.00

10/19/2023 135897 Town & Country Engineering Inc. 2024 SDW Loan Assistance 650-19107 25859 630.00

          Total 135897: 1,562.50

10/19/2023 135898 Town of Two Rivers Cut ditches - Woodland Dr/Cottage Ln -  100-53300-2900 10092023.4 200.00

          Total 135898: 200.00

10/19/2023 135899 TT FASTER -CID 253 Yearly Program Fee 2023 - PW 100-53200-2900 CINV-035301 2,722.77

          Total 135899: 2,722.77

10/19/2023 135900 USA Blue Book Transmitter - WTP 690-59831-3900 INV00160017 580.94

10/19/2023 135900 USA Blue Book Blue-White Tube Assy - WTP 690-59824-3900 INV00164280 177.83

          Total 135900: 758.77

10/19/2023 135901 Vacuum Pump & Compressor Inc Nitrile Ball & Diaphragm - WWTP 690-59833-3900 121000-00 3,877.37

197

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     20

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

          Total 135901: 3,877.37

10/19/2023 135902 Wisc Dept of Agriculture, Humane Officer Renewal Certification - J 100-52115-2920 10/17/2023 35.00

          Total 135902: 35.00

10/19/2023 135903 Wisc Dept Of Revenue-DEBITMEMO Sept 2023 Sales Tax 640-29410 10/16/2023 35,201.09

          Total 135903: 35,201.09

10/19/2023 135904 Wisconsin Public Service 114 DAVIS STREET 100-55400-2220 0401271669-1;10/23 15.65

          Total 135904: 15.65

10/19/2023 135905 Woodland Dunes Nature Center Co. Other Improvements (Zander Park) 456-51600-8170 2906 680.44

          Total 135905: 680.44

10/19/2023 135906 Zarnoth Brush Works Inc Scrapers - PW 100-16120 0195585-IN 388.20

          Total 135906: 388.20

10/26/2023 135907 4 K's Pest Control LLC General Pest Control - Library 280-55110-2410 10/20/2023 50.00

          Total 135907: 50.00

10/26/2023 135908 Amazon Business - Debit Memo Supplies - P&R 100-55140-3500 1NDG-3XMD-CHGC 30.69

          Total 135908: 30.69

10/26/2023 135909 Aurora Health Care North Inc. Pharmacy Tansfer Aug 2023 - FD 100-52300-3900 ID 3253 STATEMENT 10/1 782.36

          Total 135909: 782.36

10/26/2023 135910 Aurora Health Care, Inc EAP Quarter October 2023-December 20 500-51510-2900 505-CI0003423 702.72

          Total 135910: 702.72

10/26/2023 135911 Ball Auto & Truck Parts Inc 15W40 & Filter - WWTP 690-59833-3900 314101 71.97

198

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     21

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

          Total 135911: 71.97

10/26/2023 135912 Bluestem Forestry Consulting Inc 50% Payment Upon Completion of Tree I 260-55210-2900 213 11,650.00

          Total 135912: 11,650.00

10/26/2023 135913 Border States Industries Inc Cable Ties - URD 660-59594-3900 927217237 385.05

          Total 135913: 385.05

10/26/2023 135914 Cavanaugh, Karen Refund - Christmas Stars Trip 250-55150-3300 10/18/2023 105.00

          Total 135914: 105.00

10/26/2023 135915 City of Two Rivers Garbage Stickers - Library 640-46310 10/25/2023 87.50

          Total 135915: 87.50

10/26/2023 135916 Delta Dental of WIsconsin Delta Premiums - November 2023 100-21532 2044558 5,886.39

          Total 135916: 5,886.39

10/26/2023 135917 Dept of Administration Public Benefit Fees FY24 Q1 660-29253 505-0000084270 12,636.84

          Total 135917: 12,636.84

10/26/2023 135918 Eis Implement Inc Service Call - P&R 100-54910-2900 ACCT 5336 10/16/2023 41.34

          Total 135918: 41.34

10/26/2023 135919 Erickson Sports Apparel Logowear - CM 258-56700-3901 1488 792.00

          Total 135919: 792.00

10/26/2023 135920 Freedom Vent Systems VOCSN Carrier - FD 270-52300-2100 1099 420.61

          Total 135920: 420.61

10/26/2023 135921 Frontier Telephone - Water 650-59661-2200 5741;10/23 112.95

199

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     22

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

          Total 135921: 112.95

10/26/2023 135922 Gannett Wisconsin LocaliQ Legal Ads 100-51100-2910 0005875305 508.58

          Total 135922: 508.58

10/26/2023 135923 Global Synthetic Ice Invoice Balance 415-55410-8200 000008 49,650.00

          Total 135923: 49,650.00

10/26/2023 135924 Grainger Cut Off Wheel - WWTP 690-59833-3900 9874203897 64.00

          Total 135924: 64.00

10/26/2023 135925 Graybar Receptacles & Wiring Supplies - Elec 660-59598-3900 9334425948 246.36

          Total 135925: 246.36

10/26/2023 135926 Harrison, Stephanie Energy Star Rebate - Refrigerator 660-29253 10/25/2023 25.00

          Total 135926: 25.00

10/26/2023 135927 Hawkins Inc Azone-15 650-59641-3910 6607597 1,716.65

          Total 135927: 1,716.65

10/26/2023 135928 InfoSend Inc. Utility Bill Mailing 690-59840-3110 248468 4,661.46

          Total 135928: 4,661.46

10/26/2023 135929 James Imaging Systems Inc. Contract R113705-01 - Coverage Period  100-55140-3100 1371814 164.21

10/26/2023 135929 James Imaging Systems Inc. Contract R113706-01 - Coverage Period  100-53100-3100 1371815 395.09

10/26/2023 135929 James Imaging Systems Inc. Contract RI13707-01 - Coverage Period  100-55140-3100 1371816 905.00

          Total 135929: 1,464.30

10/26/2023 135930 James Korinek Refund - Overpayment on final bill. 660-21130 10/19/2023 26.74

          Total 135930: 26.74

200

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     23

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

10/26/2023 135931 Lester Public Library Certified Letters - Lib 280-55110-3110 10/19/2023 19.46

          Total 135931: 19.46

10/26/2023 135932 Liberty Mutual Insurance Policy Renewal Installment 1 - 10/1/23-9/ 100-16310 14696190 130,286.50

          Total 135932: 130,286.50

10/26/2023 135933 Mammoth Construction LLC Watermain Break on Woodland Drive 650-59673-2900 1645 7,517.50

          Total 135933: 7,517.50

10/26/2023 135934 Manitowoc Co Solid Waste 2338 Roosevelt Ave. Yard Clean Up 100-53200-2900 27270 300.91

10/26/2023 135934 Manitowoc Co Solid Waste Sept 2023 - Street Sweepings/Landfill 640-53310-2900 27312 1,322.67

10/26/2023 135934 Manitowoc Co Solid Waste Account #162 Sept 2023 Service - Eng 640-53620-2900 27284 9,760.68

10/26/2023 135934 Manitowoc Co Solid Waste Account #165 Sept 2023 Service - P&R 640-53620-2900 27287 1,156.20

          Total 135934: 12,540.46

10/26/2023 135935 Manitowoc Co Treasurer County Jail & Driver Improvement Surch 100-21125 10/24/2023 1,030.09

          Total 135935: 1,030.09

10/26/2023 135936 Manitowoc Engraving Inc Envelopes - FD 100-52200-3100 31826 82.95

10/26/2023 135936 Manitowoc Engraving Inc Garbage Stickers - Cust Serv 640-53620-3900 31831 1,185.00

          Total 135936: 1,267.95

10/26/2023 135937 Maritime Plumbing Services - FD 100-52200-2900 7358 260.00

          Total 135937: 260.00

10/26/2023 135938 McMahon Associates Inc Sandy Bay Highlands Stormwater Analys 290-56700-2900 932539 13,037.90

          Total 135938: 13,037.90

10/26/2023 135939 Minnesota Life Insurance Co Life Insurance premium - November 202 100-21531 10/23/2023 3,926.33

          Total 135939: 3,926.33

10/26/2023 135940 Primrose Oil Company Inc. Power Klenz - PW 100-16120 99220 581.58

201

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     24

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

          Total 135940: 581.58

10/26/2023 135941 Sherwin Williams Co Paint / Vets Park Mural 100-55300-3900 6368-9 100.74

          Total 135941: 100.74

10/26/2023 135942 Sign Me Up Outdoor Advertising LLC Oct 2023 - Digital Billboard 258-56700-2910 20221036 1,250.00

          Total 135942: 1,250.00

10/26/2023 135943 SJE - Rhombus Radio Program - WWTP 690-59833-3900 CD99499158 1,158.40

          Total 135943: 1,158.40

10/26/2023 135944 State of Wisconsin Sept 2023 penalty surcharges 100-21125 10/24/2023 3,295.51

          Total 135944: 3,295.51

10/26/2023 135945 Superior Chemical LLC Supplies - Elec 660-59588-3900 376063 121.38

10/26/2023 135945 Superior Chemical LLC Nitrile Gloves - WWTP 690-59834-3900 376081 140.62

          Total 135945: 262.00

10/26/2023 135946 TargetSolutions Learning LLC Membership/Maintenance/Career Tracki 100-52200-2920 INV67962 3,416.11

          Total 135946: 3,416.11

10/26/2023 135947 Uniform Shoppe Boots - Staudinger 100-52200-3850 338179 155.95

10/26/2023 135947 Uniform Shoppe Clothing / Ewert 100-52200-3850 338279 653.25

          Total 135947: 809.20

10/26/2023 135948 USA Blue Book Blue-White Spacer - WWTP 690-59833-2900 INV00167512 12.00

10/26/2023 135948 USA Blue Book Incubator - WWTP 690-59820-3900 INV00170316 2,897.57

          Total 135948: 2,909.57

10/26/2023 135949 Village of Mishicot Treasurer Sept 2023 Municipal Court Forfeitures 100-21125 10/24/23 835.00

202

Section 9, ItemC.



CITY OF TWO RIVERS Check Register - Monthly Bill Summary Page:     25

Check Issue Dates: 10/1/2023 - 10/31/2023 Oct 30, 2023  03:58PM

Check Issue Date Check Number Payee Description Invoice GL Account Invoice Number Invoice Amount

          Total 135949: 835.00

10/26/2023 135950 WCA/Group Health Trust November 2023 Health Premiums 100-16300 0015145770 167,990.57

          Total 135950: 167,990.57

10/26/2023 135951 Wisc Dept of Transportation Traffic Violation & Registration Program- 100-45131 10-19-23 6.00

          Total 135951: 6.00

10/26/2023 135952 Wisconsin Public Service LIBRARY 280-55110-2220 0401271669-23;10/23 444.28

10/26/2023 135952 Wisconsin Public Service FIRE DEPT 100-52200-2220 0401271669-03;10/23 120.82

10/26/2023 135952 Wisconsin Public Service GENERATOR 660-59588-2220 0401271669-38;10/23 15.65

10/26/2023 135952 Wisconsin Public Service 3801 Mishicot Rd. 100-54910-2220 0401271669-09;10/23 43.36

10/26/2023 135952 Wisconsin Public Service Pavillion 100-55200-2220 0401271669-42;10/23 16.66

10/26/2023 135952 Wisconsin Public Service WARM BLDG 100-55200-2220 0401271669-12;10/23 15.65

          Total 135952: 656.42

10/26/2023 135953 Wisconsin Retirement System Sept 2023 Contributions 100-21520 10/20/2023 124,760.11

          Total 135953: 124,760.11

10/27/2023 135954 U.S. Bank-Debit Memo Credit Card Usage - Sept 2023/Oct 2023 100-16000 STATEMENT 10/6/2023 60,428.89

          Total 135954: 60,428.89

          Grand Totals:  1,825,702.83

203

Section 9, ItemC.



1717 E. Park Street 

P.O. BOX 87 

Two Rivers, WI 54241-0087 

 

                www.two-rivers.org      920.793.1191      920.793.5500 

Date: October 31, 2023 

To: Gregory E. Buckley, City Manager 

From: Ben Meinnert, Chief of Police 

Ref: Amended Ordinances: 

Revisited amendment to an ordinance (9-8-8) regarding adult entertainment 

businesses with map of current ordinance, map of amended ordinance, and 

documentation from Attorney Thuermer for Council review. 

After review and discussion of the Two Rivers Municipal Code ordinances regarding 

noise and/or vibrations (9-2-5) and beer gardens (6-1-19), City Council directed staff 

to amend those ordinances with extended time allowance on weekends and 

consistent verbiage and requirements. Staff has also included amendment 

suggestions regarding sidewalk cafes (6-10-5) to maintain consistency across 

municipal code.  

 

Sec. 9-8-8. Separation of adult entertainment businesses. 

 

In July of 2023, our neighboring jurisdiction, Manitowoc passed amendments to their adult 

entertainment ordinance extending restrictions of such businesses to 1000 feet from any school, 

public library, day-care facility, recreational facility, place of worship, church senior/elderly 

housing facility, park or playground, and any other tavern with a fermented beverage license.  

This ordinance amendment will look to stay consistent with the distance restrictions and verbiage 

of our neighboring jurisdiction.  City Council requested maps prepared and reflective of our 

current ordinance as well as maps reflective of our proposed amended ordinance.  In addition, 

guidance from City Attorney Thuermer with documentation regarding the research through 

Manitowoc, evidenced the City maintain over 2% availability for such business.  City 

Engineering provided that the Woodland Dr Industrial Park alone provides for approximately 7% 

of availability for such business. 

 

Sec. 9-2-5 Loud and Unnecessary Noises – amend ordinance to reflect extended hours and 

decibel level requirements to 11:00 p.m. on Friday and Saturday nights as directed by Council, 

change hours to 6:00 a.m to reflect consistency with Sidewalk Café’s, add the same time 

requirements to that portion regarding vibrations from excessive sound generation as well as 

require verification of vibrations by an officer. 

 

 

204

Section 10, ItemA.



1717 E. Park Street 

P.O. BOX 87 

Two Rivers, WI 54241-0087 

 

                www.two-rivers.org      920.793.1191      920.793.5500 

Sec. 6-1-19 Beer Gardens regulated – amend ordinance to reflect the same allowable hours for 

amplified sound or music as Sec 9-2-5 while remaining consistent with hours of operation of 

Sidewalk Café’s Sec. 6-10-5. 

 

Sec 6-10-5 Sidewalk Café Permits – amend ordinance to reflect hours of operation consistent 

with Beer Gardens Sec 6-1-19. 

 

 

 

 

205

Section 10, ItemA.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-08-09 17:27:05 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 4) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 9-8-8. Separation of adult entertainment businesses. 

A. In this section, "adult entertainment business" includes but is not limited to an adult cabaret and adult 
establishment, as defined in section 9-8-4 of this Code.  

B. No more than one adult entertainment business may be established on any one parcel, and any adult 
entertainment business shall be at least 500 1000 feet from any other adult entertainment business, or any 
establishment licensed as a Class B tavern that sells intoxicating liquor.  

C. No adult entertainment business shall be permitted within 500 1000 feet of any senior/elderly housing 
facility or land zoned for residential use.  

D.  No adult entertainment business shall be permitted within 500 1000 feet of any medical clinic or hospital 
facility. 

E. No adult entertainment business shall be permitted within 500 1000 feet from any public or private 
educational facility, library, church or place of worship. The foregoing shall include but is not limited to any 
child day-care establishment, nursery school, high school, vocational school, secondary school or special 
education school. "School" includes school grounds.  

F. No adult entertainment business shall be permitted within 500 1000 feet from any public park or city-owned 
recreational area, including but not limited to a park, playground, swimming pool, athletic field, basketball, 
volleyball or tennis court, or other similar land owned by the City of Two Rivers.  

G. Distances are to be measured in a straight line, without regard to intervening structures or objects, from the 
nearest portion of the building or structure used as the part of the premises where an adult entertainment 
business is conducted to the nearest property line of the premises of a use listed in subsections A. though E 
F.  

 

206

Section 10, ItemA.



B. Class B Taverns 

 

1. 3114 Memorial Dr 

 2. 2210 Garfield St 

 3. 2014 Washington St 

4. 1402 16th St 

5. 1820 Jefferson St 

6. 1515 Memorial Dr 

7. 1713 East St 

8. 3911 Lincoln Ave 

9 1513 Washington St 

10. 4317 Tannery Rd 

11. 1811 19th St 

12. 1215 26th St 

13. 1311 Madison St 

14. 1718 West Park St. 

15. 3312 Lincoln Ave. 

16. 1822 Adams St. 

17. 4220 Memorial Dr 

18. 1407 16th St 

19. 3310 Memorial Dr 

20. 1916 Washington St 

21. 1616 Washington St.  

22. 3337 Mishicot Rd. 

23. 1019 17th St 

24. 2022 Washington St 

25. 2113 Jefferson St 

26. 1816 10th St 

27. 1410 Washington St 

Churches/House of Worship 

1. 1921 Adams St 

2. 1029 33rd St 

3. 2801 Garfield St 

4. 2140 34th St 

5. 2500 Washington St 

6. 1969 Roosevelt Ave 

7. 3234 Mishicot Rd 

8. 3607 45th St 

9. 3201 Mishicot 

 

Schools/Daycares 

1. 4519 Lincoln Ave 

2. 3502 Glenwood St 

3. 1114 Lowell St 

4. 4608 Bellevue Ave 

5. 3607 45th St 

6. 4020 Memorial Dr 

7. 2314 Washington St 

8. 1029 33rd St 

9. 4404 Bellevue Ave 

 

Clinics/Hospitals 

1. 2219 Garfield St 

2. 800 Lakefront Way 

3. 5300 Memorial Dr 

4. 5000 Memorial Dr 

5. 1400 Washington St 

6. 1516 Washington St 

 

 

207

Section 10, ItemA.



Senior/Elderly Living 

1. 1 Hamilton Dr 

2. 2500 Garfield St 

3. 4606 Mishicot Rd 

4. 1110 Victory St 

5. 2741 45th St 

 

Library 

1. 1001 Adams St 

City Park/Recreational areas 

1. Central Park West 

2. Central Park East 

3. Neshotah Park 

4. Washington Park 

5. Riverside/Skate Park 

6. Harbor Park 

7. Paddler’s Park 

8. Vietnam Vets Memorial Park 

9. Zander Park 

10. Lakeshore Park 

11. Taylor Park 

12. Veteran’s Park and Boat Launch 

 

208

Section 10, ItemA.



I:\DGN\Misc_Maps\PoliceDept\1000_Rad.dgn 9/22/2023 12:41:40 PM      SCALE = 700.000 ft / in.

209

Section 10, ItemA.



I:\DGN\Misc_Maps\PoliceDept\1000_Rad.dgn 9/22/2023 9:09:01 AM      SCALE = 800.000 ft / in.

210

Section 10, ItemA.



211

Section 10, ItemA.



212

Section 10, ItemA.



213

Section 10, ItemA.



214

Section 10, ItemA.



215

Section 10, ItemA.



ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE to amend Municipal Code Section 9-8-8, Separation of Adult Entertainment Businesses. 
 

The Council of the City of Two Rivers ordains as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  That Section 9-8-8 of the Municipal Code shall hereby be amended as follows: 
 

A. In this section, "adult entertainment business" includes but is not limited to an adult cabaret 
and adult establishment, as defined in section 9-8-4 of this Code.  
 

B. No more than one adult entertainment business may be established on any one parcel, 
and any adult entertainment business shall be at least 1000 feet from any other adult 
entertainment business, or any establishment licensed as a Class B tavern that sells 
intoxicating liquor.  

 

C. No adult entertainment business shall be permitted within 1000 feet of any senior/elderly 
housing facility or land zoned for residential use.  

 

D. No adult entertainment business shall be permitted within 1000 feet of any medical clinic 
or hospital facility. 

 

E. No adult entertainment business shall be permitted within 1000 feet from any public or 
private educational facility, library, church or place of worship. The foregoing shall include 
but is not limited to any child day-care establishment, nursery school, high school, 
vocational school, secondary school or special education school. "School" includes school 
grounds.  

 

F. No adult entertainment business shall be permitted within 1000 feet from any public park 
or city-owned recreational area, including but not limited to a park, playground, swimming 
pool, athletic field, basketball, volleyball or tennis court, or other similar land owned by the 
City of Two Rivers.  

 

 G. Distances are to be measured in a straight line, without regard to intervening structures or 
objects, from the nearest portion of the building or structure used as the part of the 
premises where an adult entertainment business is conducted to the nearest property line 
of the premises of a use listed in subsections A. though F. 

 
SECTION 5.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its date of passage and 

publication of same. 
 

Dated this 6th day of October, 2023. 
 

________________________________ 
Adam Wachowski 

President, City Council 
 
 

________________________________ 
Gregory E. Buckley 

City Manager 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Amanda Baryenbruch 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form and legality: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
John M. Bruce 
City Attorney 216

Section 10, ItemA.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-08-09 17:27:04 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 4) 

 
Page 1 of 4 

Sec. 9-2-5. Loud and unnecessary noises. 

A. Loud and unnecessary noise prohibited. It shall be unlawful for any person to make, continue or cause to be 
made or continued any loud and unnecessary noise.  

B. Types of loud and unnecessary noises. The following acts are declared to be loud, disturbing and unnecessary 
noises in violation of this section, but this enumeration shall not be deemed to be exclusive:  

(1) Horns, signaling devices. The sounding of any horn or signaling device on any automobile, motorcycle 
or other vehicle on any street or public place in the city for longer than three seconds in any period of 
one minute or less, except as a danger warning; the creation of any unreasonable loud or harsh sound 
by means of any signaling device and the sounding of any plainly audible device for an unnecessary and 
unreasonable period of time; the use of any signaling device except one operated by hand or 
electricity; the use of any horn, whistle or other device operated by engine exhaust; and the use of any 
signaling device when traffic is for any reason held up.  

(2) Radios, phonographs, similar devices. 

(a) The using, operating or permitting to be played, used or operated any radio receiving set, musical 
instrument, phonograph or other machine or device for the producing or reproducing of sound in 
a manner exceeding the maximum permissible sound levels set forth in section 9-2-5.C.(1)(a).  

(b) The using, operating or permitting to be played, used or operated any radio receiving set, musical 
instrument, phonograph or other machine or device for the producing or reproducing of sound 
between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 76:00 a.m Sunday through Thursday, and between the 
hours of 11:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. Friday and Saturday in a manner as to be plainly audible within 
an enclosed structure used for residential purposes and located on a residentially zoned parcel 
shall be prima facie evidence of a violation of this section. Violations of this subsection shall 
require the verification by an officer and an identified complainant.  

(3) Loudspeakers, amplifiers for advertising. The using, operating or permitting to be played, used or 
operated of any radio receiving set, musical instrument, phonograph, loudspeaker, sound amplifier or 
other machine or device for the producing or reproducing of sound which is cast upon the public 
streets for the purpose of commercial advertising or attracting attention of the public to any building 
or structure. Announcements over loudspeakers can only be made by the announcer in person and 
without the aid of any mechanical device.  

(4) Animals, birds. The keeping of any animal or bird which by causing frequent or long continued 
unnecessary noise shall disturb the comfort or repose of any persons in the vicinity.  

(5) Steam whistles. The blowing of any steam whistle attached to any stationary boiler except to give 
notice of the time to begin or stop work or as a warning of fire or danger or upon request of proper city 
authorities.  

(6) Exhausts. The discharge into the open air of the exhaust of any steam engine, stationary internal 
combustion engine or motorboat except through a muffler or other device which will effectively 
prevent loud or explosive noises therefrom.  

(7) Construction or repair of buildings. The erection (including excavation), demolition, alteration or repair 
of any building, as well as the operation of any pile driver, steam shovel, pneumatic hammer, derrick, 
steam or electric hoist, or any other similar equipment attended by loud or unusual noise, other than 
between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m. on weekdays; provided, however, the city manager 
shall have the authority, upon determining that the loss or inconvenience which would result to any 
party in interest would be extraordinary and of such nature as to warrant special consideration, to 

217

Section 10, ItemB.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-08-09 17:27:04 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 4) 

 
Page 2 of 4 

grant a permit for a period necessary within which time such work and operation may take place within 
the hours of 10:00 p.m. to 7:00 a.m.  

(8) Schools, courts, churches, hospitals. The creation of any excessive noise on any street adjacent to any 
school, institution of learning, church or court while in use, or adjacent to any hospital, which 
unreasonably interferes with the normal operation of that institution or which disturbs or unduly 
annoys patients in the hospital, provided that conspicuous signs are displayed in those streets 
indicating a school, hospital, church or court street.  

(9) The provisions of this section shall not apply to: 

(a) Any vehicle of the city while engaged in necessary public business.  

(b) Excavations or repairs of streets or other public construction by or on behalf of the city, county, 
or state at night when public welfare and convenience renders it impossible to perform such 
work during the day.  

(c) The reasonable use of amplifiers or loudspeakers in the course of public addresses which are 
noncommercial in character.  

C. Noise limits. 

(1) Maximum permissible sound levels. 

(a) Noise from a stationary source shall not exceed the following standards for maximum sound 
pressure levels as measured on an A-weighted scale (dbA) and measured as outlined in 
subsection G.(2) below. "Business to residential" readings are sound pressure levels emanating 
from a parcel zoned business as measured on a parcel zoned as residential. "All other zones to 
residential" are sound pressure levels emanating from a parcel zoned other than residential or 
business as measured on a parcel zoned as residential.  

Zone  

Times  Residential  
[db(A)]  

Business  
[db(A)]  

All Other Zones  
[db(A)]  

Business to 
Residential  

[db(A)]  

All Other Zones 
to Residential  

[db(A)]  

Daytime—76:00 
a.m. to 10:00 

p.m. Sun-Thurs; 
6:00 a.m. to 

11:00 p.m Fri-
Sat 

60  70  75  65  75  

Nighttime—
10:00 p.m. to 

76:00 a.m. Sun-
Thurs; 11:00 

p.m to 7:00 a.m. 
Fri-Sat 

50  70  75  60  75  

 

(b) "Ambient noise" is the all-encompassing noise associated with a given source, usually being a 
composite of sounds with many sources near and far, but excluding the noise source being 
measured. Ambient noise is a factor, and the subject noise shall exceed the ambient noise by five 
decibels (db) in any octave band to be designated excessive.  

218

Section 10, ItemB.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-08-09 17:27:04 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 4) 

 
Page 3 of 4 

(c) Pure tones and impulsive noises are factors. Five noise rating numbers shall be taken from the 
table in subsection C.(1)(a), above, if the subject noise consists primarily of a pure tone or if it is 
impulsive in character.  

(2) Construction noise. Construction equipment in any zone may be operated between the hours of 7:00 
a.m. to 7:00 p.m., provided that said equipment does not exceed a maximum sound pressure level of 
80 db(A) measured at the property line of the location at which said equipment is in use.  

(3) Noise in residential districts. In residential zones, the person in violation of this section shall be ordered 
to reduce the sound pressure to acceptable levels immediately by the monitoring officer.  

D. The causing of vibrations from excessive sound generation. The creation of sound waves by any operation or 
activity of such frequency and/or decibel levels that the sound causes vibrations to structural components, 
walls, glass, windows, or doors of a residence and/or vibrations to personal property contents of a residence 
beyond the lot line of its source which would unreasonably disturb or unduly annoy occupants, detectable by 
either visual observation, touch or by secondary audible noise emanating from the personal property 
resulting from the vibration of such objects by sound waves originating from outside of the residence 
between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m Sunday through Thursday, and between the hours of 11:00 
p.m. and 6:00 a.m. Friday and Saturday , shall constitute a violation of this section, regardless of whether the 
maximum permissible sound levels set forth in section 9-2-5.C.(1)(a) are met or exceeded. Violations of this 
subsection shall require the verification by an officer and an identified complainant. 

E. Operation of certain equipment. Lawn mowers, chain saws, powered garden equipment, electric insect-
killing/insect-repelling devices, and other nonconstruction maintenance equipment shall be operated only 
during the hours between 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. unless within the specified noise levels measured at the 
property line of the location at which said equipment is in use.  

F. Exemptions. Operation of emergency equipment shall be exempt from this chapter. Emergency equipment 
shall include government-owned or government-contracted vehicles, machinery and equipment used to 
provide emergency medical (ambulance), police, fire and snow and ice control services. Privately owned 
vehicles, machinery and equipment used for snow and ice control and removal on private property shall also 
be exempt from the provisions of this chapter, provided such vehicle, machinery or equipment is not 
determined to be emitting excessive noise due to lack of repair or maintenance. The city manager or his/her 
designee may also grant temporary exemptions to the provisions of this chapter when such exemptions are 
deemed to be in the public interest.  

G. Methods of measuring noise. 

(1) Equipment. Noise measurement shall be made with a sound level meter.  

(2) Location of noise meter. Noise measurement shall be made at the nearest lot line of the premises from 
which a noise complaint is received. Absent an identified location of the complainant, measurements 
shall be taken at the lot line of the property generating the noise. The noise meter shall be placed at a 
height of at least three feet above the ground and at least three feet away from the walls, barriers, 
obstructions, and all other sound reflective surfaces.  

H. Control of nighttime noise emitted from residential air conditioners. 

(1) No person shall install, operate, or use any residential air conditioner which creates a noise level in a 
sleeping room in any dwelling unit located on any adjacent premises in the excess of five decibels 
above the ambient noise level at the location being measured.  

(2) Upon receiving a complaint, the police department will conduct a noise survey through the use of a 
sound level meter. The sound pressure level should be measured in a sleeping room in the 
complainant's premises with the sound level measuring microphone placed three feet from an open 

219

Section 10, ItemB.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-08-09 17:27:04 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 4) 

 
Page 4 of 4 

window nearest to the source of the noise and not less than three feet above the floor of the room in 
which the measurement is made.  

I. Appeals. The city manager may grant an exemption to individuals proving evidence of substantial hardship. 
Evidence that reasonable technological attempts have been made to correct the problem shall be considered 
grounds for granting an exemption to this chapter for existing industries.  

(Amended 1-20-2020; 10-5-2020; 11-30-2020) 

 

220

Section 10, ItemB.



ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE to amend Municipal Code Sections 9-2-5 B(2)(b) Radios, phonographs, similar devices; 
9-2-5 C(1)(a) Noise Limits and; 9-2-5 D the causing of vibrations from excessive sound generation, entitled 
loud and unnecessary Noises. 

 
The Council of the City of Two Rivers ordains as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  That Section 9-2-5 B(2)(b) Radios, phonographs, similar devices of the Municipal Code 

shall hereby be amended as follows: 

(2) Radios, phonographs, similar devices. 

(b) The using, operating or permitting to be played, used or operated any radio receiving set, 
musical instrument, phonograph or other machine or device for the producing or reproduc-
ing of sound between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m Sunday through Thursday, and 
between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. Friday and Saturday in a manner as to be 
plainly audible within an enclosed structure used for residential purposes and located on a 
residentially zoned parcel shall be prima facie evidence of a violation of this section. Viola-
tions of this subsection shall require the verification by an officer and an identified com-
plainant.  

SECTION 2.  That Section 9-2-5 C(1)(a) Noise limits of the Municipal Code shall hereby be amended as 
follows: 

C. Noise limits. 

(1) Maximum permissible sound levels. 

(a) Noise from a stationary source shall not exceed the following standards for maximum 
sound pressure levels as measured on an A-weighted scale (dbA) and measured as out-
lined in subsection G.(2) below. "Business to residential" readings are sound pressure lev-
els emanating from a parcel zoned business as measured on a parcel zoned as residential. 
"All other zones to residential" are sound pressure levels emanating from a parcel zoned 
other than residential or business as measured on a parcel zoned as residential.  

Zone  

Times  Residential  
[db(A)]  

Business  
[db(A)]  

All Other 
Zones  
[db(A)]  

Business to 
Residential  

[db(A)]  

All Other 
Zones to Resi-

dential  
[db(A)]  

Daytime—6:00 a.m. to 
10:00 p.m. Sun-Thurs; 

6:00 a.m. to 11:00 
p.m Fri-Sat 

60  70  75  65  75  

Nighttime—10:00 p.m. 
to 6:00 a.m. Sun-

Thurs; 11:00 p.m to 
7:00 a.m. Fri-Sat 

50  70  75  60  75  

 
 
SECTION 3.  That Section 9-2-5 D the causing of vibrations from excessive sound generation of the 

Municipal Code shall hereby be amended as follows:  

D. The causing of vibrations from excessive sound generation. The creation of sound waves by any 
operation or activity of such frequency and/or decibel levels that the sound causes vibrations to struc-
tural components, walls, glass, windows, or doors of a residence and/or vibrations to personal property 
contents of a residence beyond the lot line of its source which would unreasonably disturb or unduly 
annoy occupants, detectable by either visual observation, touch or by secondary audible noise ema-
nating from the personal property resulting from the vibration of such objects by sound waves origi-
nating from outside of the residence between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m Sunday through 
Thursday, and between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. Friday and Saturday , shall constitute 
a violation of this section, regardless of whether the maximum permissible sound levels set forth in 
section 9-2-5.C.(1)(a) are met or exceeded. Violations of this subsection shall require the verification 
by an officer and an identified complainant. 

 
 

221

Section 10, ItemB.



 
 
 
 
SECTION 4.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its date of passage and 

publication of same. 
 

Dated this 6th day of November, 2023. 
 

________________________________ 
Adam Wachowski 

President, City Council 
 
 

________________________________ 
Gregory E. Buckley 

City Manager 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Amanda Baryenbruch 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form and legality: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
John M. Bruce 
City Attorney 

222

Section 10, ItemB.



 
 

ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE to amend Municipal Code Sections 6-1-19 H(5) Amplified sound or music and 6-1-19 I 
Hours of operation, entitled Beer gardens regulated. 

 
The Council of the City of Two Rivers ordains as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  That Section 6-1-19 H(5) Amplified sound or music of the Municipal Code shall hereby be 

amended as follows: 

H. Standards and conditions. 

(5) Amplified sound or music is prohibited between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m Sunday 
through Thursday, and between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. Friday and Saturday. 
Noise from any source that is emitted from the outdoor area shall not exceed the standards 
contained in section 9-2-5, loud and unnecessary noises.  

 
SECTION 2.  That Section 6-1-19 I Hours of operation of the Municipal Code shall hereby be amended 

as follows: 

I. Hours of operation. The beer garden shall remain closed to the public between the hours of 10:00 

p.m. and 6:00 a.m Sunday through Thursday, and between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. 
Friday and Saturday. 

 
SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its date of passage and 

publication of same. 
 

Dated this 6th day of November, 2023. 
 

________________________________ 
Adam Wachowski 

President, City Council 
 
 

________________________________ 
Gregory E. Buckley 

City Manager 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Amanda Baryenbruch 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form and legality: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
John M. Bruce 
City Attorney 

223

Section 10, ItemC.



 
 

ORDINANCE 
 

AN ORDINANCE to amend Municipal Code Section 6-10-5 J Hours of operation, entitled Sidewalk café 
permits. 

 
The Council of the City of Two Rivers ordains as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  That Section 6-10-5 J Hours of operation of the Municipal Code shall hereby be amended 

as follows: 

J. Hours of operation. Sidewalk cafes shall remain closed to the public between the hours of 10:00 
p.m. and 6:00 a.m Sunday through Thursday, and between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. 
Friday and Saturday.  

 
SECTION 3.  This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its date of passage and 

publication of same. 
 

Dated this 6th day of November, 2023. 
 

________________________________ 
Adam Wachowski 

President, City Council 
 
 

________________________________ 
Gregory E. Buckley 

City Manager 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Amanda Baryenbruch 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form and legality: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
John M. Bruce 
City Attorney 

224

Section 10, ItemD.



 DIRECT ANNEXATION ORDINANCE 
 
 
The City Council of the City of Two Rivers ordains as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. Pursuant to the provisions of Wisconsin State Statutes Section 66.0217, 
the following territory presently lying within the Town of Two Rivers, is hereby annexed to the City 
of Two Rivers: 

 
See attached "Exhibit A" 

 
SECTION 2. The territory described in Section 1 shall be part of the City of Two Rivers 

for any and all purposes provided by law, and all persons coming to or residing within said territory 
shall be subject to all ordinances, rules, and regulations governing the City of Two Rivers. 
 

SECTION 3. Pursuant to Section 66.0217(8)(a) of the Wisconsin State Statutes, said 
territory shall be classified for zoning purposes as R-1, Single Family Residence District. 

 
SECTION 4.  Pursuant to Section 66.0217(14) of the Wisconsin State Statutes, the City 

of Two Rivers hereby agrees to pay the Town of Two Rivers for five (5) years, an amount equal 
to the amount of property taxes that said Town levied on the annexed territory, as shown by the 
tax roll under Section 70.65 of the Statutes, in the year in which this annexation is final. 
 

SECTION 5. Upon passage of this ordinance, the City Clerk for the City of Two Rivers 
is hereby directed to transmit five (5) certified copies of this ordinance, together with five (5) copies 
of a plat showing the boundaries of the territory attached, to the Secretary of the State of 
Wisconsin. 
 

SECTION 6. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication hereof. 
 
Dated November 6, 2023. 
 
 

____________________________________                                                                        
Adam Wachowski, President, City Council 

 
 

____________________________________ 
Gregory E. Buckley, City Manager 

Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Amanda Baryenbruch, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form and legality: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
John M. Bruce, City Attorney 

225

Section 10, ItemE.



EXHIBIT A 

ATTACHMENT TO ANNEXATION ORDINANCE 

LEGAL DESCTRIPTION OF TERRITORY PROPOSED FOR ANNEXATION 

An existing tract of land recorded in Volume 3546 on Page 189 of Deeds, being Lot 10 
and a portion of Lot 11, all in Block 1, Sandy Bay Subdivision, located in the East ½ of 
the SW ¼ of Section 31, T. 20 N., R. 25 E., Town of Two Rivers, Manitowoc County, 
Wisconsin and further described as follows: 

Commencing at the S ¼ Corner of said Section 31; thence N 00°10’50” W recorded as S 
0°07’45” E along the section line a distance of 1261.13 feet; thence S 89°49’10” W a 
distance of 655.27 feet to the northeasterly corner of said Lot 10 and the point of real 
beginning; thence S 30°40’02” W recorded as S 30°42’45” W a distance of 218.00 feet; 
thence S 29°08”02” W recorded as S 29°10’45” W a distance of 21.08 feet; thence N 
64°04’02” W a distance of 261.46 feet; thence N 30°40’02” E recorded as S 30°42’45” W 
a distance of 43.03 feet; thence N 59°14’58” W recorded as S 59°12’15” E a distance of 
10.00 feet; thence N 30°40’02” E recorded as S 30°42’45” W a distance of 218.00 feet; 
thence S 59°14’58” E recorded as S 59°12’15” E a distance of 270.00 feet to the said 
northeasterly corner of Lot 10 and the point of real beginning. 

Said tract contains 67,205 square feet of 1.54 acres of land more or less. 

226

Section 10, ItemE.



227

Section 10, ItemE.



228

Section 10, ItemE.



 ORDINANCE TO AMEND ZONING MAP 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE to amend the District Map of the City of Two Rivers, Wisconsin, dated 
March 21, 2005, made a part of Section 10-1-3A(1) of the Municipal Code. 

 
The Council of the City of Two Rivers ordains as follows: 

 
SECTION 1. That pursuant to Section 62.23(7)(d) of the Wisconsin State Statutes, the 
District Map of the City of Two Rivers, Wisconsin, dated March 21, 2005, made part of 
Section 10-1-3A(1) of the Municipal Code be and the same is hereby amended in the 
following respects: 
 
An existing tract of land recorded in Volume 3546 on Page 189 of Deeds, being Lot 10 
and a portion of Lot 11, all in Block 1, Sandy Bay Subdivision, located in the East ½ of the 
SW ¼ of Section 31, T. 20 N., R. 25 E., Town of Two Rivers, Manitowoc County, Wisconsin 
and further described as follows:  

 
Commencing at the S ¼ Corner of said Section 31; thence N 00°10’50” W recorded as S 
0°07’45” E along the section line a distance of 1261.13 feet; thence S 89°49’10” W a 
distance of 655.27 feet to the northeasterly corner of said Lot 10 and the point of real 
beginning; thence S 30°40’02” W recorded as S 30°42’45” W a distance of 218.00 feet; 
thence S 29°08”02” W recorded as S 29°10’45” W a distance of 21.08 feet; thence N 
64°04’02” W a distance of 261.46 feet; thence N 30°40’02” E recorded as S 30°42’45” W 
a distance of 43.03 feet; thence N 59°14’58” W recorded as S 59°12’15” E a distance of 
10.00 feet; thence N 30°40’02” E recorded as S 30°42’45” W a distance of 218.00 feet; 
thence S 59°14’58” E recorded as S 59°12’15” E a distance of 270.00 feet to the said 
northeasterly corner of Lot 10 and the point of real beginning. 
 
Said tract contains 67,205 square feet of 1.54 acres of land more or less. 

 
SECTION 2. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication hereof. 

 
Dated November 6, 2023. 
 
 

___________________________________ 
Adam Wachowski, President, City Council 

 
 

___________________________________ 
Gregory E. Buckley, City Manager 

Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Amanda Baryenbruch, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form and legality: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
John M. Bruce, City Attorney 

229

Section 10, ItemF.



 

 

 
    Created: 2023-08-09 17:27:01 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 4) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

City of Two Rivers 

Sec. 7-1-5. Parking in parks. 

No person shall park any motor vehicle in any park in the city except in designated parking areas, nor shall 
any person allow any motor vehicle, trailer, or construction equipment to allow remain parked within any city park 
during park closing hours, except by permission of the city manager or his designee. The penalty for violation of 
this section is as provided for in section 8-1-6.C. of the City Code.  

Sec. 7-1-6. Park closing hours. 

No person shall be within Picnic Hill Park between 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. No person shall be within any 
other city parks between 11:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. This section shall not apply to persons traveling directly through 
any park on a city street, and further provided the hours set forth in the section may be adjusted by the city 
council or city manager, or his designee, for special activities.  

 

230

Section 10, ItemG.



231

Section 10, ItemI.



232

Section 10, ItemI.



233

Section 10, ItemI.



234

Section 10, ItemI.



235

Section 10, ItemI.



236

Section 10, ItemI.



237

Section 10, ItemI.



238

Section 10, ItemI.



239

Section 10, ItemI.



240

Section 10, ItemI.



241

Section 10, ItemI.



242

Section 10, ItemI.



243

Section 10, ItemI.



244

Section 10, ItemI.



245

Section 10, ItemI.



246

Section 10, ItemI.



247

Section 10, ItemI.



248

Section 10, ItemI.



249

Section 10, ItemI.



250

Section 10, ItemI.



251

Section 10, ItemI.



252

Section 10, ItemI.



253

Section 10, ItemI.



254

Section 10, ItemI.



255

Section 10, ItemI.



256

Section 10, ItemI.



257

Section 10, ItemI.



258

Section 10, ItemI.



259

Section 10, ItemI.



260

Section 10, ItemI.



261

Section 10, ItemI.



262

Section 10, ItemI.



263

Section 10, ItemI.



264

Section 10, ItemI.



265

Section 10, ItemI.



266

Section 10, ItemJ.



267

Section 10, ItemJ.



268

Section 10, ItemJ.



269

Section 10, ItemJ.



270

Section 10, ItemJ.



271

Section 10, ItemJ.



272

Section 10, ItemJ.



273

Section 10, ItemJ.



274

Section 10, ItemJ.



275

Section 10, ItemJ.



276

Section 10, ItemJ.



277

Section 10, ItemJ.



278

Section 10, ItemJ.



279

Section 10, ItemJ.



280

Section 10, ItemJ.



 

 

 

J. (2) Agreement with Scot Crawford Financial, Inc. 

 

To be distributed at Monday’s mee�ng 

281

Section 10, ItemJ.


	Top
	Section 8, ItemB.	Bryan Gunewald from Clifton Larson Allen LLP, Presentation of the 2022 Audited Financial Statements
	Finance 1
	Finance 2

	Section 8, ItemE.	Legislative Update
	Legislative Session
	2023- Res Opposing Regulation of Storm Water Utilities by the PSCW 11.06.2023 (1)

	Section 9, ItemA.	Presentation of Minutes
	10-16-23 CC min Final

	Section 9, ItemB.	Minutes of Meetings
	10.12.2023 Personnel and Finance
	Minutes-P&F 101923
	Minutes-P&F 102623
	Minutes-P&F 110223
	Explore Two Rivers Meeting of the Board of Directors Minutes 10-24-23ER
	EAB Minutes 10-17-23
	BID Minutes 10-26-23
	TRMS Budget 2024 (1)

	Section 9, ItemC.	Summary of
	Summary of Bills - October  2023

	Section 10, ItemA.	Amending Ordinance  9-8-8 Seperation of Adult Entertainment Businesses
	Amended Ordinances Memo 08-31-2023
	Sec._9_8_8.___Separation_of_adult_entertainment_businesses. changes
	Adult entertainment 1000 foot restrictions
	500_Rad
	1000_Rad_
	City of Manitowoc Proposed Revision Adult Entertainment
	2023- Ord 9-8-8 Separation of adult entertainment businesses

	Section 10, ItemB.	Ordinance Amending Section 9-2-5 of the Municipal Code, Entitled "Loud and Unnecessary Noises"
	10-31-23 changes Sec._9_2_5.___Loud_and_unnecessary_noises.
	2023- Ord 9-2-5 Loud and unnecessary noises

	Section 10, ItemC.	Ordinance Amending Section 6-1-19 of the Municipal Code, entitles "Beer Gardens Regulated," to Modify Hours When Amplified Music or Sound is Permitted, to Make Consistent With Provisions of Noise Ordinance (Section 9-2-5)
	2023- Ord 6-1-19 Beer gardens regulated

	Section 10, ItemD.	Amending Ordinance 6-10-5 Sidewald Cafe Permits
	2023- Ord 6-10-5 Sidewalk cafe permits

	Section 10, ItemE.	Ordinance for Direct Annexation and R-1 Zoning Request, located at 2423 County Road 0, Town of Two Rivers, submitted by Edward Zimmeth (owner)
	Direct Annexation Ordinance

	Section 10, ItemF.	Ordinance for R-1 Zoning Request for direct annexation property located at 2423 County Road 0, Town of Two Rivers, submitted by Edward Zimmeth (owner)
	Zoning Ordinance for Annexation

	Section 10, ItemG.	Temporary lifting of ordinances 7-1-5, 7-1-6, Overnight camping in park for Beach Bash, June 25-30, 2024
	Sec._7_1_5.___Parking_in_parks.

	Section 10, ItemI.	West River Lofts Agreement
	West River Lofts Project

	Section 10, ItemJ.	Consideration of Easement Agreements Related to Public Shoreline Access and Shoreline and Public Trail Improvements in Conjunction With West River Lofts Residential Redevelopment Project
	SKM_C550i23110317340
	agreement

	Bottom

